Blochman Union School District
Benjamin Foxen School * 4949 Foxen Canyon Road
Santa Maria, CA 93454 * (805) 937-1148

BOARD OF TRUSTEES AGENDA
Tuesday, October 10, 2023
Library
5:30 p.m. — Regular Session

Any materials required by law to be made available to the public prior to a meeting of the Board of
Education of the District can be inspected at the above address during normal business hours.
Individuals who require special accommodations including, but not limited to, American Sign Language
interpreter, accessible seating or documentation in accessible formats should contact the superintendent
or designee within a reasonable time before the meeting date.

Governing Board Members
Shannon Clay, President
Kelly Salas-Ernst, Clerk
Thomas Gibbons, Trustee
Daniella Pearce, Trustee
Jeania Reasner, Trustee

L. PUBLIC SESSION: 5:30 p.m. Call to Order and Flag Salute

II. Welcome Guests

III.  Reports
A. Charter School Reports
i. Family Partnership Charter School

ii. Trivium Charter School
iii. Trivium Charter School: Adventure
iv. Trivium Charter School: Voyage

B. Teacher Reports

C. Superintendent/Principal’s Report

IV. ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR INFORMATION
A. SBCEO Approval of the 2023/2024 Adopted Budget
B. SBCEO Approval of the 2023/2024 LCAP
C. Facilities Use - none.

V. ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR DISCUSSION
A. Facilities
i. General Maintenance
ii. Facilities upgrades — Phase 11

VI. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

October 10, 2023 Board Agenda



A. Approval of Minutes
i. Minutes of September 12, 2023 Regular Meeting

*** IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the minutes as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

B. Approval of Monthly Warrants — September, 2023
i. Commercial Warrants $450,825.32

ii. Payroll $214,159.76
iii. Revolving Fund $ 0.00
TOTAL $664,985.08

***]T IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the Warrants as
presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

C. Approval of the 2022/2023 Family Partnership Unaudited Actual Financial
Statements

**% [T IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the 2022/2023 Family
Partnership Unaudited Financial Statements as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

VII. ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR ACTION

A. Approval of Benjamin Foxen Elementary School September 2023 Attendance Report

**% T IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the Benjamin Foxen
Elementary School September 2023 Attendance Report as presented:
~ 2 ~
October 10, 2023 Board Agenda



MOVED: SECOND:

VOTE:
Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

B. Approval of third quarter 2023 Williams Report.

***IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the third
quarter 2023 Williams Report as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

C. Approval of the Memorandum of Understanding with WestEd for survey
administration.

***IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the
Memorandum of Understanding with WestEd for survey administration as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

D. Approval of the revised Arts, Music, and Instructional Materials Block Grant
Expenditure Plan.

***IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the revised
Arts, Music, and Instructional Materials Block Grant Expenditure Plan as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

E. Approval of the revised board policies: BP1160, BP1330, AR1330, AR3311,
AR3311.3, BP3312, BP3460, BP3551, AR3551, BP4151, BP4251, BP4351, AR4217.3,
BP5131.9, BP6154, BP6162.5, AR7140, BP9124. Delete: E(1)1330.

~ 3 ~
October 10, 2023 Board Agenda



***IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the revised
board policies as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

F. Approval of inter-district transfers.

***[T IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the inter-
district transfers as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE;

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENTS

PUBLIC COMMENTS ARE WELCOME
The Blochman Union School District will receive public comments about items not appearing on
today’s agenda, as well as other matters within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. All such
comments will be received during the Public Comments section of the agenda. Individuals who
address the Board are limited to three (3) minutes to speak on any item and a total of 10 minutes on all
items for their presentation. The Board may limit the total time for all public comment to 30 minutes.
Persons needing additional time are requested to submit the information in writing.

For comments concerning matters not on the agenda, open meeting laws and fairness to other
residents who may have an interest in your topic prohibit the Board from taking action or engaging in
extended discussion of your concerns. The Board may direct staff to meet at a later date with speakers
who have specific concerns or needs. The Board may also direct that an issue be placed on a future
agenda for discussion and consideration. This permits the Board and staff members to prepare and
receive necessary information and for the public to be aware that a topic is being formally considered.
We appreciate your cooperation.

IX. MISCELLANEOQUS AGENDA ITEMS

Items Proposed for Future Action or Discussion

Blochman Union School District Board Member Items

Items not on the Agenda

Next Scheduled Board Meeting November 14, 2023; open session at 5:30 p.m.,
Library

SESENS

X. CLOSED SESSION — The board will consider and may act upon the following items
during closed session:
A. Certificated and Classified Personnel Actions

~ 4 ~
October 10, 2023 Board Agenda



i. The Board will be asked to review and approve hiring, transfers, promotions,
evaluations, terminations, and resignations.
B. Conference with labor negotiator; Doug Brown, district negotiator.

XI. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION
A. Report of action taken during closed session.

XII. Adjourn

TIME:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

October 10, 2023 Board Agenda












Adopted Budget Analysis and Recommendations
September 15, 2023
SBAS-9623

Page 2

outlay of $1.5 million budgeted in the General Fund. We encourage the district to continue its cautious
forecasting of future revenues and expenses and update its budget projections as new information becomes
available. The district must continue to proactively manage staffing levels, escalating costs, and facilities
needs to ensure that adequate ongoing funding remains available to support its core programs and fund
activities in the Local Control and Accountability Plan.

Cashflow

The district’s cash flow projections indicate that the general fund will maintain a positive balance
throughout the year. Please notify our office immediately if a cash shortfall is projected that cannot be
covered through local means (i.e., interfund borrowing).

Conclusion

We are aware that the information provided reflects the district's financial position and assumptions as of a
point in time and that further adjustments will be made during the year as additional data becomes available.

We wish to express our appreciation to the district staff for their cooperation during this review. If our
office can be of further assistance, please call us.

ad

c Nancy Shafer, Interim Business Manager

Steve Torres, Associate Superintendent
Dr. Susan Salcido, County Superintendent of Schools






-~

- Santa Barbara County Education Office

SANTA BARBARA 4400 Cathedral Oaks Rd, PO Box 6307, Santa Barbara, CA 93160-6307

County Bducation Office  elephone: (805) 964-4711 + EAX: (805) 964-4712 - sbceo.org
ervice & Leadership

Susan C. Salcido, Superintendent of Schools

September 7, 2023

Shannon Clay, School Board President
Doug Brown, Superintendent
Blochman Union School District

4949 Foxen Canyon Road

Santa Maria CA 93454

Dear Board President Clay and Superintendent Brown,

Thank you for submitting the 2023-2024 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) for the
Blochman Union School District. We appreciate your district’s commitment to working
collaboratively with your community and with the Santa Barbara County Education Office on
this LCAP process.

The county superintendent of schools is required to review and approve the district’s LCAP and
Annual Update in accordance with Education Code sections 52070, 52064, and 42127 prior to
the approval of the district’s budget. The approval process incorporates a comprehensive review
of fiscal and programmatic elements of the plan. Our office has completed its review of your
district’s LCAP. Based on this review, it has been determined that all required areas of the
review have been met:

o The LCAP adheres to the template adopted by the State Board of Education.

o The budget includes expenditures sufficient to implement the specific actions and
services in the LCAP.

e The plan adheres to the expenditure requirements for funds apportioned on the basis
of the number and concentration of unduplicated students pursuant to California
Education Code sections 42238.02 and 42238.03.

o The LCAP includes the required calculations to determine whether there is a carryover
obligation and, if applicable, includes a description of the actions planned to satisfy that
full obligation for increasing and improving services.

Based on these criteria, your LCAP is approved for the 2023-2024 fiscal year. As discussed
with Superintendent Brown on August 23, we ask that a few very minor technical corrections
be made to your posted LCAP. Our review process revealed a scribal error in the Goal Analysis
section. Please prominently post the updated 2023-2024 LCAP with the correction on the home
page of the district website.



Board President Clay and Superintendent Brown
Page 2

On behalf of the state, the county, and your local community, we would like to extend our
appreciation for Blochman Union School District’s hard work and for embracing both the spirit
and the requirements of local control and accountability through educational partner
engagement, transparency, data monitoring, and strategic planning, while continuing to provide
excellent instruction and services for students. These efforts will certainly benefit the students
of Blochman Union. We look forward to meeting with your team in the coming months to
support the implementation of your plans.

Sincerely,

o

Dr. Susan Salcido
Santa Barbara County
Superintendent of Schools






Blochman Union School District
Benjamin Foxen School * 4949 Foxen Canyon Road
Santa Maria, CA 93454 * (805) 937-1148

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES
Tuesday, September 12, 2023
Library
5:30 p.m. — Regular Session

A regular meeting of the Board of Education of the Blochman Union School District was held at the
Benjamin Foxen Elementary School Library on September 12, 2023,

Members present: Shannon Clay, Thomas Gibbons, Daniella Pearce, Jeania Reasner, Kelly Salas-Ernst.

L.

IL.

I1L.

IV.

PUBLIC SESSION: Mrs. Clay called the meeting to order at 5:33 p.m., led the flag
salute, and welcomed guests.

Reports
A. Charter School Reports
i. Family Partnership Charter School — none.

ii. Trivium Charter Schools — Trisha Vais reported that they have had an interesting
beginning of the year. They have had staffing issues, but they are getting this
resolved. They currently have approximately 865 — 870 students. They have a large
percentage of students who are in crisis. They now have two school psychologists
to help with these situations. The virtual science program is going well. Fall break
is coming up in October. They are providing safety training to employees.

B. Teacher Reports

C. Superintendent/Principal’s Report - Doug Brown reported that enrollment is 190. We
still have room in first grade for more students. Students have taken their first [-Ready test.
Teachers will receive training soon on how to interpret the scores. Back to School Night
was well attended. He thanked the Food Service Manager and staff for providing great
meals for the students. The school has a girls’ volleyball team for the first time ever. He
thanked Mrs. Arkinson for coaching the team. Conferences are coming up and progress
reports will be sent home with students. The school grounds look great. The After School
Program is going well. The campus environment is great.

ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR INFORMATION
A. Facilities update
i. General maintenance — none
il. Facilities remodel — none
B. Facilities use
i. Cherie Vecente; cafeteria; December 2, 2023

ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR DISCUSSION - none

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS
A. Approval of Minutes

September 12, 2023 Regular Meeting Board Minutes



i. Minutes of August 8, 2023 Regular Meeting

*** The Board of Education will take action to approve the Minutes as presented:

MOVED: Thomas Gibbons SECOND: Jeania Reasner
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye

Daniella Pearce: Aye Kelly Salas-Ernst: Aye

Thomas Gibbons: Aye

B. Approval of Monthly Warrants — August 2023
i. Commercial Warrants $ 63,712.95

ii. Payroll $107,610.57
iii. Revolving Fund $ 0.00
TOTAL $171,323.52

*** The Board of Education will take action to approve the Warrants as presented:

MOVED: Jeania Reasner SECOND: Thomas Gibbons
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye

Daniella Pearce: Aye Kelly Salas-Ernst: Aye

Thomas Gibbons:  Aye

C. Approval of the Trivium Charter Schools 2022/2023 Unaudited Actuals report:
i. Trivium Charter School
ii. Trivium Charter School: Adventure
iii. Trivium Charter School: Voyage

*** The Board of Education will take action to approve the 2022/2023 Trivium Charter Schools
Unaudited Actuals report as presented:

MOVED: Jeania Reasner SECOND: Thomas Gibbons
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye

Daniella Pearce: Abstain Kelly Salas-Ernst: Aye

Thomas Gibbons:  Aye

VL ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR ACTION

A. Approval of Benjamin Foxen Elementary School’s August 2023 Attendance Report.

*** The Board of Education will take action to approve Benjamin Foxen Elementary School’s
August 2023 Attendance Report as presented:

September 12, 2023 Regular Meeting Board Minutes



MOVED: Kelly Salas-Ernst SECOND: Thomas Gibbons
VOTE: )

Shannon Clay: Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye

Daniella Pearce: Aye Kelly Salas-Ernst: Aye

Thomas Gibbons: Aye

B. Approval of Blochman Union School District’s updated Universal Pre-kindergarten
(UPK) plan.

*** The Board of Education will take action to approve Blochman Union School District’s
updated UPK plan as presented:

MOVED: Kelly Salas-Ernst SECOND: Jeania Reasner
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye

Daniella Pearce: Aye Kelly Salas-Ernst: Aye

Thomas Gibbons:  Aye

C. Gannr Limit Resolution

Sepiember 12. 2023 Regular Meeting Board Mmutes



BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
RESOLUTION 2023-09-12-01 FOR ADOPTING THE “GANN” LIMIT
(Normal, no increase to Limit pursuant to G. C. 7902.1)

WHEREAS, in November of 1979, the California electorate did adopt Proposition 4, commonly
called the Gann Amendment, which added Article XIII-B to the California Constitution; and,

WHEREAS, the provisions of that Article establish maximum appropriation limitations,
commonly called “Gann Limits”, for public agencies, including school districts; and,

WHEREAS, the District must establish a revised Gann Limit for the 2022/2023 fiscal year and a
projected Gann Limit for the 2023/2024 fiscal year in accordance with the provisions of
Article XIII-B and applicable statutory law;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that this Board does provide public notice that the
attached calculations and documentation of the Gann limits for the 2022/2023 and

2023/2024 fiscal years are made in accordance with applicable constitutional and
statutory law;

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Board does hereby declare that the

Appropriations in the Budget for the 2022/2023 and 2023/2024 fiscal years do not exceed the
limitations imposed by Proposition 4;

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the District will provide copies of this resolution along with
the appropriate attachments to interested citizens of this district.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Education of the Blochman Union School District this 12th
day of September, 2023.

s —— 2
Moved: Tho na s (7 ‘ .l)i)(, nsS Second: .} ;i i Kocasney™

Vote;

Ayes: Shanng i C’ (L{.Lfl. }1’& f /t/ S"“ Lz& --Zfrns—l’, 7 i’kﬁt/vu&‘ é?/é)j)wt&l &'U?;C / / a ZD(’Q.V e,
Noes: Ane. Y.
Absent: Lyon¢. Jeane INeasner

Abstain: Alpn €.

JAZ/// 47 // / ;/ o

President of the Board 6F E’ uceﬁm\n
Blochman Union School District

September 12, 2023 Regular Meeting Board Agenda



D. Public Hearing on Sufficiency of Instruction Materials

Pursuant to California Education Code Section 60119 (as revised by Chapter 704, Statutes of 2006
and California Code of Regulations, Title 5, Section 9531), in order to be eligible to receive
instructional material funds, the governing board of each district is required to hold an annual public
hearing and adopt a resolution stating whether each pupil in the district has sufficient textbooks or
instructional materials in specified subjects that are aligned to the academic current standards and
consistent with the content and cycles of the curriculum frameworks adopted by the state board.

A PUBLIC HEARING IS REQUIRED:

PUBLIC HEARING

Open Public Hearing;: Time: 5:46 p.m,

MOVED: Kelly Salas-Ernst SECOND: Jeania Reasner
VOTE: , :

Shannon Clay: Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye

Daniella Pearce: Aye Kelly Salas-Ernst: Aye

Thomas Gibbons:  Aye

September 12, 2023 Regular Meeting Board Minutes



BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
RESOLUTION 2023-09-12-02
RESOLUTION REGARDING SUFFICIENCY OR INSUFFICIENCY OF INSTRUCTIONAL
MATERIALS

Whereas, the governing board of BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT, in order to comply
with the requirements of Education Code Section 60119 held a public hearing on SEPTEMBER
12,2023, at _5:46 p.m. o'clock, which is on or before the eighth week of school (between the
first day that students attend school and the end of the eighth week from that day) and which did
not take place during or immediately following school hours, and;

Whereas, the governing board provided at least 10 days’ notice of the public hearing posted in

at least three public places within the district that stated the time, place, and purpose of the
hearing, and;

Whereas, the governing board encouraged participation by parents, teachers, members of the
community, and bargaining unit leaders in the public hearing, and;

FOR A FINDING OF SUFFICIENT INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS:

Whereas, information provided at the public hearing and to the governing board at the public
meeting detailed the extent to which textbooks and instructional materials were provided to all
students, including English learners, in the district/county office of education, and;

Whereas, the definition of “sufficient textbooks or instructional materials” means that each pupil
has a textbook or instructional materials, or both, to use in class and to take home, and:;

NOTE: The definition of sufficient textbooks or instructional materials no longer includes

the phrase “to complete required homework assignments.” Students must now be able to
take their instructional materials home.

Whereas, sufficient textbooks and instructional materials were provided to each student,
including English learners that are aligned to the academic content standards and consistent
with the cycles and content of the curriculum frameworks in the following subjects (see attached
Appendix to Resolution for complete instructional materials listing):

e Mathematics

e Science

» History-social science
* English/language arts

Therefore, it is resolved that for the 2023/2024 school year, the BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL
DISTRICT has provided each pupil with sufficient textbooks and instructional materials aligned

to the academic content standards and consistent with the cycles and content of the curriculum
frameworks.

September 12, 2023 Regular Meeting Board Agenda



\FOR A FINDING OF INSUFFICIENT MATERIALS:

Wher&as, the definition of “sufficient textbooks or instructional mat’érials” means that each pupil
k or instructional materials, or both, to use in clqss/and to take home, and;

p
Whereas, informationprovided at the public hearing and 6 the governing board at the public

meeting detailed that inSufficient textbooks or instructishal materials were provided to pupils in
the following subjects and gr

cgle\ve: at district sghHools
z//
For each school list the percentage of/stﬁdents in each subject and grade levels for which

insufficiencies exist in mathematicsy.gcience, history-social science, and
English/language arts, foreign languagde. and health.

Whereas, the insufficient textbooks~or instructional matgrials listed above were not provided at
each school due to the foIIowmg/reasons

Therefore, it is resolved, t a/for the school year, the
district/county office of gducation has not provided each pupil with sufficient textbooks and
instructional materia/ls consistent with the cycles and content of the currteylum framework, and;

Be it further);eb}d/ed that the following actions will be taken to ensure that all $tydents haye

sufficient textSooks or instructional materials in all subjects that are aligned to the
content steﬁdards and consistent with the cycles and content of the curriculum frameworks
within two months of the beginning of the school year in which this determination is ma
(List actions to be taken — see Education Code Section 60119(a.2.B) for other funds

/- may be used to ensure sufficient instructional materials)

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of September, 2023 by the following vote:

Moved: "I 2.0 v Ru.\gv‘u' Second: \/\‘\\L\ Ki')L\XL.kS" Coirpyst
i . . q») l v
Ayes: ¢ o e C'*/fu/ ' f/w ] l\, YA 728 Cvrg / Thyvves G, l;;l‘k"m) I)zcmg_“a,l{fcu'e‘d LN

Noce. Llovw_ R
Abstained: J_k e

Absent: f { g

ATTEST:

e U%Q@M

Secret , Board’qf Education

September 12, 2023 Regular Meeting Board Agenda



Close Public Hearing: Time: 5:48 p.m.

MOVED: Jeania Reasner SECOND: Thomas Gibbons
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye

Daniella Pearce: Aye Kelly Salas-Ernst: Aye

Thomas Gibbons:  Aye

E. Approval of Blochman Union School District’s 2022/2023 Unaudited Actual Financial
Statements

*** The Board of Education will take action to approve Blochman Union School District’s
2022/2023 Unaudited Financial Statements as presented:

MOVED: Kelly Salas-Ernst SECOND: Jeania Reasner

VOTE:
Shannon Clay: Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye
Daniella Pearce: Aye Kelly Salas-Ernst: Aye

Thomas Gibbons:  Aye

F. Approval of inter-district transfers.

*** The Board will take action to approve the inter-district transfer as presented:

MOVED: Jeania Reasner SECOND: Thomas Gibbons
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye

Daniella Pearce: Aye Kelly Salas-Ernst: Aye

Thomas Gibbons:  Aye

VIL PUBLIC COMMENTS - none.

VIII. MISCELLANEOUS AGENDA ITEMS
A. Items Proposed for Future Action or Discussion — none.
B. Blochman Union School District Board Member Items — Mr. Gibbons mentioned that he
was aware of a community member harassing our Crossing Guard. Mr. Brown said he is aware
of the situation and will take appropriate action.
C. Items not on the Agenda — none.
D. Next Scheduled Board Meeting: October 10, 2023; open session at 5:30 p.m., Library

IX. CLOSED SESSION: The board adjourned to closed session at 5:56 p.m. where they will
consider and may act on the following:

A. Certificated and Classified Personnel Actions
i. The board will be asked to review and approve hiring, transfers, promotion,
evaluations, terminations, and resignations.

~8~

September 12, 2023 Regular Meeting Board Minutes



X. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION - The board reconvened in open session at 6:08 p.m.

A. Report of action taken during closed session — Mrs. Salas-Ernst reported that the board
took no action.

XL Adjourn

TIME: 6:08 p.m.

MOVED: Jeania Reasner SECOND: Thomas Gibbons
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye

Daniella Pearce: Aye Kelly Salas-Ernst: Aye

Thomas Gibbons:  Aye

Septembar 12, 2023 Regular Meeting Board Minutes






ReqPay12a

Checks Dated 09/01/2023 through 09/30/2023

Board Report

Check Check Pay to the Order of Expensed Check
Number Date Fund-Object Amount Amount
01-756479 09/01/2023 Arkinson, Jennifer M 01-4100 23.88

01-4300 27.21 51.09
01-756480 09/01/2023 Arnold, Joni G 01-4300 189.93
01-756481 09/01/2023 Troeger, Kimberly J 01-5200 77.91
01-756482 09/01/2023 Wickenden-Harris, Lisa 01-4300 303.23
01-756483 09/01/2023 805 Dairy Distributing LLC 13-4710 512.00
01-756484 09/01/2023 Bee Safe Lock & Key 01-4300 328.64
01-756485 09/01/2023 Edna's Bakery 13-4710 33.25
01-756486 09/01/2023 FAMILY PARTNERSIP CHARTER 01-8096 64,197.00
01-756487 09/01/2023 Frontier Communications 01-5910 1,364.17
01-756488 09/01/2023 Johnson Controls Fire LP 14-6200 1,640.94
01-756489 09/01/2023 Mission Linen Supply Inc. 01-4300 96.81
01-756490 09/01/2023 Nancy B Shafer, CPA 01-5800 8,190.00
01-756491 09/01/2023 The Berry Man, Inc. 13-4710 390.90
01-756492 09/01/2023 Trivium Charter School 01-8096 143,146.00
01-757397 09/11/2023 805 Dairy Distributing LLC 13-4710 493.00
01-757398 09/11/2023 Advanced Wireless 01-5910 287.54
01-7567399 09/11/2023 Amazon Capital Services 01-4300 1,392.59

13-4300 89.87 1,482.46
01-757400 09/11/2023 American Star Tours 01-5800 13,398.00
01-757401 09/11/2023 Avila Valley Barn 01-4300 488.00
01-757402 09/11/2023 Coast Networx, Inc. 01-5800 50.00
01-757403 09/11/2023 DANA Adobe & Cultural Center 01-4300 210.00
01-757404 09/11/2023 Diani Building Corp. 14-6200 150,513.16
01-757405 09/11/2023 Edna's Bakery 13-4710 54.10
01-757406 09/11/2023 Go To Communications, Inc. 01-5910 49418
01-757407 09/11/2023 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 01-4300 268.17
01-757408 09/11/2023 Jack's Plumbing, Inc. 01-5800 214.35
01-757409 09/11/2023 Jordanos Food Service Division 01-4300 41717

13-4710 4,203.02 4,620.19
01-757410 09/11/2023 Mission Linen Supply Inc. 01-4300 346.53
01-757411 09/11/2023 Sisc Il Insurance 67-5450 18,486.50
01-757412 09/11/2023 STEM Taught 01-4300 3,258.03
01-757413 09/11/2023 The Bemry Man, Inc. 13-4710 119.55
01-757414 09/11/2023 US OMNI & TSACG Compliance 01-5800 50.00
01-757415 09/11/2023 Whittle Fire Protection 01-5800 360.00
01-757416 09/11/2023 WM CORPORATE SERVICES, INC. 01-5570 1,296.52
01-757417 09/11/2023 XEROX FINANCIAL SERVICES 01-5630 604.44
01-758522 09/18/2023 Kraus, Janet 01-4300 69.74
01-758523 09/18/2023 805 Dairy Distributing LLC 13-4710 476.80
01-758524 09/18/2023 ACSA 01-5300 1,663.88
01-758525 09/18/2023 Amazon Capital Services 01-4400 586.29
01-758526 09/18/2023 Blochman Union School District 01-5800 24.00
01-758527 09/18/2023 California Dept. Of Education 13-4710 152.10
01-758528 09/18/2023 Church Paper 01-4300 17.43

Unpaid Tax 46- 16.97
| The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization LFvS CAPE

of the Board of Trustees. It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved. Page 1 of 3 |

002 - Blochman Union School District

Generated for Nancy Shafer (02SHAFERN), Oct 12023 9:49AM



ReqPay12a Board Report

Checks Dated 09/01/2023 through 09/30/2023

Check Check Pay to the Order of Expensed Check
Number Date Fund-Object Amount Amount
01-758529 09/18/2023 Culligan San Paso 01-4300 234.06
01-758530 09/18/2023 DANA Adobe & Cultural Center 01-4300 230.00
01-758531 09/18/2023 Department Of Justice 01-5800 96.00
01-758532 09/18/2023 Edna's Bakery 13-4710 143.45
01-758533 09/18/2023 Golden State Water Company 01-5530 267.66
01-758534 09/18/2023 Heartland School Solutions 13-5800 1,239.00
01-758535 09/18/2023 Mission Linen Supply Inc. 01-4300 167.30
01-758536 09/18/2023 Pacific Gas & Electric 01-5520 737.70
01-758537 09/18/2023 Paradise Tree Service 01-5800 10,500.00
01-758538 09/18/2023 School Outlet 01-4300 22.05
01-9501 2,674.14 2,696.19
01-758539 09/18/2023 Staples 01-4300 468,92
01-758540 09/18/2023 The Berry Man, Inc. 13-4710 989.15
01-759776 09/25/2023 Arnold, Joni G 01-4300 181.30
01-759777 09/25/2023 McCallister, Jennifer D 01-4300 54.35
01-759778 09/25/2023 805 Dairy Distributing LLC 13-4710 300.00
01-75977¢9 09/25/2023 ALD TELECOM 01-5910 16.44
01-759780 09/25/2023 Amazon Capital Services 01-4300 60.27
01-759781 09/25/2023 Coast to Coast Computer 01-4300 420.24
01-759782 09/25/2023 Edna's Bakery : 13-4710 147.80
01-759783 09/25/2023 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 01-4300 207.69
01-759784 09/25/2023 Houghton Mifflin Harcourt 01-4100 778.64
01-759785 09/25/2023 IXL Learning 01-5800 2,750.00
01-759786 09/25/2023 Mission Linen Supply Inc. 01-4300 277.46
01-759787 09/25/2023 Procare Janitorial Supply 01-4300 168.28
01-759788 09/25/2023 Smart & Final 13-4300 11.95
13-4710 326.98 338.93
01-759789 09/25/2023 SoCalGas 01-5510 154,94
01-759790 09/25/2023 Staples 01-4300 2,292.87
01-759791 09/25/2023 The Berry Man, inc. 13-4710 154.40
01-759792 09/25/2023 US Bank Corporate Payments 01-4300 3,266.68
01-5200 130.97
01-5800 336.00
13-4300 180.23
13-4710 39.96
Unpaid Tax 4.51- 3,949.33
01-759793 09/25/2023 Verizon Wireless 01-5910 196.58
Total Number of Checks 72 450,825.32
Fund Recap
Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount
01 General Fund 54 270,132.18
13 Cafeteria Spec Rev Fund 18 10,057.51
14 Deferred Maintenance Fund 2 152,154.10
67 Self-Insurance Fund 1 1 18,486.50
1 The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization {fﬁSﬁCfAj’ii
| ofthe Board of Trustees. Itis recommended that the preceding Checks be approved. Page 2 of 3

002 - Blochman Union School District Generated for Nancy Shafer (02SHAFERN), Oct 12023 9:49AM



ReqPay12a Board Report

(Checks Dated 09/01/2023 through 09/30/2023

Check Check Pay to the Order of Expensed Check
Number Date Fund-Object Amount Amount
Total Number of Checks 72 450,830.29
Less Unpaid Tax Liability 4.97-
Net (Check Amount) 450,825.32
[ The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization LES_C_ARL
of the Board of Trustees. Itis recommended that the preceding Checks be approved. Page 3 of 3

002 - Blochman Union School District Generated for Nancy Shafer (02SHAFERN), Oct 1 2023 9:49AM



i1 jo | abey
REDTRLN :vos: |

WVY0G:6 £20Z | 100 '(NY34VYHSZ0) 49jeyS Aouey Joj patesausn

191381 JOOYDS UOLUN UBWIYOO|g - 200

3dV o (€202/0€/6 = 918 Aed Buipu3 '€Z07/L/6 = 91eq Aed buels 'z = B10) Aq pasyi] ‘610 Aq pednoig  Lonoss

ze L6°225°20L TvioL
JON 0497
SPIOH X234D
19N annebanN 9L°65L'v1Z 9L651°VLT
HOV 19N [eled SuoNNQUIUOYD ,9'688'SS /9°688'G5 Aupgert ousig
By ol-1tg] suononpag 81°z69'0S 60°022°'8G1 sBujuie ssouo

ze 162,601 sKsodaq yoaig Aed1dON 167226201

| 13N] | V1V ONIONVIVE |

HOV PIOA 6T $8'1.85°90L
$Y93Y) [S2uR) vZ LL'Y6S 0L SOIIGe!T JOPUIA
panssioy [~ 11861 $)J38YD JOPUSA

€202/6Z/60 N1Y3 £202/80/60 d3eg SS3201d 10} 9NsSSIaY/[aoUued _ *

£20Z/62/60 NIy} £202/80/60 238 Aed 10j Aewwung SuEE

58185901 19°688°SS 81°269°0S S1Vv1i0l
£8'62£'9C 09°L8S'VL eT8vLLL 1violgans 87°758'00L (44 60°022°8S1 e Iv1iOL
¥8°205'8Y 1G9ey LG9ey SoXe |
8E°68Y' V. ¥¥°80£'01 ¥¥°80€°01 sbuines Jswwng
00°L 82°€00'} 82°€00’L OSIN z.°z0z'0¢ ol 09°€€Z'¥S 91 payIsse|)
09'L8S'vL 09°1L85'vL slysuag 95°6¥9'0L cl 6%'9€0'v01 9l pajesyia)
sassols) Jasiqng jelol Jakojdwz aakojdwz SNOILONAa3a _ Tow\no_nEw ajeway adA) uosiagd SONINYVYI
6£°€50°CS ¥8°06Z°vE §5°C9.°LL lviolans 60°027°851 Iv1iol
9v'¥86 9y ¥86 OSsI
Lg'zov'e 617091 29°Zv6'e sjjausg
00'126'C) 06°98.'¢ 16°29¥'C 658LE'L 29/ SYl1S 0Z'1L9°} spuadis
XA T4 ZEvE6'0C 9¢'€29'cl 96°0lE'L 09/SYlS 96°¥9€'C SWIUdAD
€1'691'GS 8y’ LEL'BL 2781l 9z ELY'Y 29/S4d3d e¥'.e8 SNo3UB|ISISIN
69°€ZE L) 29°¢L8'E 91°120'¢ 99°76. Sddd 06°96€'€S1 Aed aseg
sassous) 3o3lqng |ejoL 13kojdwz aakojdwz SNOLLONA3y A T«:wan:_uc. awoou| dnoag Aq SONINNVI
£€9'861°8C €T LL0'L or'L8LLT lviorans 60°0,2°851 Tvi0l
LO'EVE' VS| 96'90C'1 96°902'L dwod ,SIaNOM
LO'EPE VS 8L'LL 8L°LL NS
LO'EVE' VS| 6°SLY'Y 96°/€2'C 96°/€2°C aledIpsiy
$0°€.£°95 92'066'9 €L'GeY'E £L'GeY'E Aunoag [ewog
¥5° /05071 0.°6E0'V 0.°6€0°Y Buiployyup 11
$5205°0v1 1980V L1 1980V LL BuiployyimA [e19pa 4 60°022°8S1 Jenfoy
sassoliq) yoalqng [elol Jakojdwz aakojdwz wmx<._.\_ Ta:wE«w:_uc. awIooU| apoo sbuiuieg Aq SONINMVI

.. £z0z/62/60 ,:m_q._es. £202/80/60 1eQ Aed

b1p Aq Atewwing |jo1hed



| abed

00°0

aviol

aosuejeqg

junowy

nids

§TTe) JUNO2oY owap

wnn

ajed

adA]

£20Z Joquiaideg
Jiejag JopudA Ag sasuadx3y
AaNN4d SNIATOAIY NVINHOO1d

siseq {enJooy
€C/10/01

WV €56






Family Partnershlp Charter 2022-23 Unaudlted Actuals 42 69112 0111773
Blochman Union Elementary Charter School Alternative Form Form ALT
Santa Barbara County Certification D8AUSZDE3D(2022-23)
CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTUALS
FINANCIAL REPORT ~ ALTERNATIVE FORM
July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023

CHARTER SCHOOL CERTIFICATION

Charter School
Name:

CDS #:  42-69112-0111773

Family Parinership Charler

Charter Approving

Entity: Blochman Union Elementary

County; Santa Barbara

Charter #: 0763

NOTE: An Alternative Form submilted to the California Department of Education will not be considered a valid submission if the following information is missing:

For informalion regarding lhis repor, please contacl:

r County Fiscal Contagl: For Approving Entily; Eor Charter School:
y-Fiscal Contacl: £or Lharier >ehool:
Danielle Spahn Nancy Shafer Dennis Nguy en
Name Name Name

District Financial Advisor

Interim Business Manager

CSMC - Consultant

Title
805-964-4710 x 5273

Tille
805-937-1148 x 113

Title
213-563-3926

Telephone Telephone Telephone
dspahn@sbceo.org blochman@blochmanusd.org dnguy en@csmci.com
Email address Email address Email address

To the entity thal approved the charler school:

2022-23 CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTUALS, ALTERNATIVI
Education Code Section 42100(b).

report has beeﬁ'jrov ed. and is hereby filed by the charter schoo! pursuant to

we G-l - 25

(Original signature
requirad)

Printed Name: Stephanie Eggert Tille:  Executiv e Direclor

To the County Superintendent of Schools:

2022-23 CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTUALS FINANCIAL REPORT ~ ALTERNATIVE FORM: This report is hereby filed with the County Superintendent pursuant to Education Code
Section 42100{a).

Signed: Date:

Authorized
Representative of
Charter Approving Entity

(Original signature
required)

Printed Name: Doug Brown Title:  Superintendent

To lhe Superiniendent of Public Instruction:

2022-23 CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTUALS FINANCIAL REPORT — ALTERNATIVE FORM: This report has been verified for mathematical accuracy by the County Superintendent of
Schools pursuant to Education Code Section 42100(a). .

Signed: Date:

County
Superinlendent/Designee

{Original signature
required)

Califomia Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V6.1

File: ALT_UA, Version 2 Page 1 Printed: 9/7/2023 5:12 PM



Family Partnership Charter 2022-23 Unaudited Actuals
Blochman Union Elementary Charter School Alternative Form
Santa Barbara County Alternative Form

CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTUALS
FINANCIAL REPORT -- ALTERNATIVE FORM
July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023

Charter School Name: Family Partnership Charter

42 69112 0111773
Form ALT
D8AUSZDE3D(2022-23)

CDS #: 42-69112-0111773

Charter Approving Entity: Blochman Union Elementary

County: Santa Barbara

Charter #: 0763

This charter school uses the following basis of accounting:

(Please enter an "X" in the applicable box below; check only one box)

Accrual Basis (Applicable Capital Assets/Interest on Long-Term Debt/Long-Term Liabilities/Net Position objects are 6900, 6310, 7438, 9400-3489, 9660-9669, 9796, and

9797)

Modified Accrual Basis (Applicable Capital Outlay/Debt Service/Fund Balance objects are 61006170, 6200-6500, 6600, 7438, 7439, and 9711-9789)

Description Object Code Unrestricted Restricted Total
A. REVENUES
1. LCFF Sources
State Aid - Current Y ear 8011 3,357,460.00 3,357,460.00
Education Protection Account State Aid - Current Year 8012 333,434.00 333,434.00
State Aid - Prior Y ears 8019 (40,037.00) (40,037.00)
Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes 8096 534,972.00 534,972.00
Other LCFF Transfers 8091, 8097 0.00
Total, LCFF Sources 4,185,829.00 0.00 4,185,829.00
2. Federal Revenues {see NOTE in Section L)
No Child Left Behind/Every Student Succeeds Act 8290 0.00
Special Education - Federal 8181, 8182 74,313.00 74,313.00
Child Nutrition - Federal 8220 0.00
Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00
Other Federal Revenues 8110, 8260-8299 60,976.57 60,976.57
Total, Federal Rev enues 0.00 135,280.57 135,289.57
3. OCther State Revenues
Special Education - State StateRev SE 375,625.00 375,625.00
All Other State Rev enues StateRevAO 278,027.91 85,386.48 363,414.39
Total, Other State Revenues 278,027.91 461,011.48 739,038.39
4. Other Local Revenues
All Other Local Rev enues LocalRevAO 134,350.84 134,350.84
Total, Local Revenues 134,350.84 0.00 134,350.84
5. TOTAL REVENUES 4,598,207.75 596,301.05 5,194,508.80
8. EXPENDITURES (see NOTE in Section L)
1. Certificated Salaries
Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 1,785,467.55 178,752.83 1,964,220.38
Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 222,612.12 222,612.12
Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 0.00
Other Certificated Salaries 1900 0.00
Total, Certificated Salaries 2,008,079.67 178,752.83 2,186,832.50
2. Noncertificated Salaries
Noncertificated Instructional Salaries 2100 116,774.38 116,774.38
Noncertificated Support Salaries 2200 0.00
Noncertificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 136,255.12 136,255.12
Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 147.387.80 147,387.80
Other Noncertificated Salaries 2900 0.00
Total, Noncertificated Salaries 283,642.92 116,774.38 400,417.30
Description Object Code Unrestricted Restricted Totat
3. Employeo Benefits
STRS 3101-3102 538,355.33 33,906.98 572,262.31
PERS 3201-3202 56,995.47 6,337.77 63,333.24
QASDI / Medicare / Alternative 3301-3302 48,470.11 11,503.84 60,974.05
Califomia Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V6.1
File: ALT_UA, Version 2 Page 1 Printed: 9/14/2023 9:54 AM



Family Partnership Charter

Blochman Union Elementary
Santa Barbara County

2022-23 Unaudited Actuals

Charter School Alternative Form

Alternative Form

42 69112 0111773
Form ALT
D8AUSZDE3D(2022-23)

Califomia Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V6.1
File: ALT_UA, Version 2

Page 2

Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 224,396.00 17,973.50 242,369.50
Unemploy ment Insurance 3501-3502 11,156.22 1,470.26 12,626.48
Workers' Compensation Insurance 3601-3602 11,333.00 11,333.00
OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00
OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00
Other Employ ee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00
Total, Employ ee Benefits 891,706.13 71,192.45 962,898.58
4. Books and Supplies
Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 24,755.86 24,755.86
Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 51,333.13 49,680.59 101,013.72
Materials and Supplies 4300 120,640.87 10,413.17 131,054.04
Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 10,975.91 21,750.56 32,726.47
Food 4700 5,481.98 5,481.98
Total, Books and Supplies 188,431.89 106,600.18 295,032.07
5. Serivices and Other Operating Expenditures
Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00
Travel and Conferences 5200 43,527.17 31,938.53 75,465.70
Dues and Memberships 5300 9,251.00 9,251.00
Insurance 5400 59,836.88 59,836.88
Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 114,238.73 114,238.73
Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncap. Improvements 5600 367,605.66 367,605.66
Transfers of Direct Costs 5700-5799 0.00
Prof essional/Consulting Services and Operating Expend. 5800 313,264.65 126,635.62 439,900.27
Communications 5900 56,215.88 56,215.88
Total, Services and Other Operating Expenditures 963,939.97 158,574.15 1,122,514.12
6. Capital Outlay
(Objects 6100-6170, 6200-6500 modified accrual basis only)
Land and Land improvements 6100-6170 0.00
Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00
Books and Media for New School Libraries or Major
Expansion of School Libraries 6300 0.00
Equipment 6400 0.00
Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00
Lease Assets 6600 0.00
Depreciation Expense (accrual basis only) 6900 0.00
Amortization Expense - Lease Assets 6910 0.00
Total, Capital Outlay 0.00 0.00 0.00
7. Other Outgo
Tuition to Other Schools 7110-7143 0.00
Transfers of Pass-Through Rev enues to Other LEAs 7211-7213 0.00
Transfers of Apportionments to Other LEAs - Spec. Ed. 7221-7223SE 0.00
Transfers of Apportionments to Other LEAs - All Other 7221-7223A0 0.00
All Other Transfers 7281-7299 0.00
Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00
Debt Service:
Interest 7438 0.00
Principal (for modified accrual basis only ) 7439 0.00
Total Debt Service 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total, Other Outgo 0.00 0.00 0.00
8. TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,335,800.58 631,893.99 4,967,694.57
Description Object Code Unrestricted Restricted Total
C. i):‘CDElsng(g!izgc-éEB;\ICY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 262,407.17 (35,592.94) 226,814.23
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES / USES
g::::;es 8930-8979 0.00

Printed: 9/14/2023 9:54 AM




Famlly Partnership Charter
Blochman Unlon Elementary
Santa Barbara County

2022-23 Unaudited Ac

Alternative Form

tuals

Charter School Alternative Form

42 69112 0111773
Form ALT
D8AUSZDE3D(2022-23)

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V6.1
File: ALT_UA, Version 2 Page 3

Less:
2. Other 7630-7699
Uses 866,130.00 866,130.00
3. Contributions Between Unrestricted and Restricted Accounts
(must net to zero) 8980-8999 (40,969.45) 40,969.45 0.00
4, TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES / USES (907,099.45) 40,969.45 (866,130.00)
E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE /NET POSITION (C+D4) (644,692.28) 5,376.51 (639,315.77)
F. FUND BALANCE / NET POSITION
1. Beginning Fund Balance/Net Position
a. As of July 1 9791 2,647,492.13 52,741.00 2,700,233.13
b. Adjustments/Restatements 9793, 9795 {90,113.41) {90,113.41)
c. Adjusted Beginning Fund Balance /Net Position 2,657,378.72 52,741.00 2,610,119.72
2. Ending Fund Bafance /Net Position, June 30 (E+F1c}) 1,912,686.44 58,117.51 1,970,803.95
Components of Ending Fund Balance (Modified Accrual Basis only)
a. Nonspendable
1. Revolving Cash (equals Object 9130} 9711 0.00
2. Stores (equals Object 9320} 9712 0.00
3. Prepaid Expenditures (equals Object 9330} 9713 0.00
4. All Others 9719 0.00
b. Restricted 9740 0.00
c. Committed
1. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00
2. Other Commitments 9760 0.00
d. Assigned 9780 0.00
e. Unassigned/Unappropriated
1. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00
2. Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790M 0.00
3. Components of Ending Net Position (Accrual Basis only)}
a. Net Investment in Capital Assets 9796 0.00 0.00
b. Restricted Net Position 9797 58,117.51 58,117.51
¢. Unrestricted Net Position 9790A 1,912,686.44 0.00 1.912,686.44
Description Object Code Unrestricted Restricted Total
G. ASSETS
1. Cash
In County Treasury 9110 2,323,712.03 2,323,712.03
Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 9111 (77,300.60) {77,300.60)
In Banks 9120 111,627.40 58,117.51 169,744.91
In Revolving Fund 9130 0.00
With Fiscal Agent/Trustee 9135 0.00
Collections Awaiting Deposit 9140 0.00
2, Invesiments 9150 0.00
3. Accounts Receivable 9200 12,891.06 12,891.08
4, Due from Grantor Gov ernments 9290 146,655.97 146,655.97
5, Stores 9320 0.00
6. Prepaid Expenditures (Expenses) 9330 212,871.62 212,871.62
7. Other Current Assets 9340 0.00
8. Lease Receivable 9380 0.00
9. Capital Assets (accrual basis only) 9400-9489 341,354.43 341,354.43
10. TOTAL ASSETS 3,071,811.91 58,117.51 3,129,929.42
H. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
1. Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490 0.00
2. TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 0.00 0.00 0.00
|. LIABILITIES
1. Accounts Pay able 9500 166,970.23 166,970.23
2. Due to Grantor Gov ernments 9590 41,499.00 41,499.00
3. Curent Loans 9640 0.00
4. Unearned Revenue 9650 618,334.11 618,334.11

Printed: 9/14/2023 9:54 AM




Family Partnership Charter
Blochman Union Elementary
Santa Barbara County

2022-23 Unaudited Actuals
Charter School Alternative Form
Alternative Form

42 69112 0111773
Form ALT
D8AUSZDE3D(2022-23)

5. Long-Term Liabilities (accrual basis only) 9660-9669 332,322.13 332,322.13
6. TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,1569,125.47 0.00 1,159,125.47
J. DEFERREP INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
1. Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690 0.00
2. TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS 0.00 0.00 0.00
K. FUND BALANCE /NET POSITION
Ending Fund Balance /Net Position, June 3G (G10 + H2) - (16 + J2)
(must agree with Line F2) 1,912,686.44 58,117.51 1,970,803.95

L. FEDERAL EVERY STUDENT SUCCEEDS ACT {ESSA) MAINTENANCE OF EFFORT REQUIREMENT

NOTE: IF YOUR CHARTER SCHOOL RECEIVED FEDERAL FUNDING, AS REPORTED IN SECTION A2, THE FOLLOWING ADDITIONAL INFORMATION MUST BE PROVIDED IN
' ORDER FOR THE CDE TO CALCULATE COMPLIANCE WITH THE FEDERAL EVERY STUDENT SUCCEEDS ACT (ESSA) MAINTENANCE OF EFFORT REQUIREMENT:

1. Federal Revenue Used for Capital Outlay and Debt Service

Included in the Capital Qutlay and Debt Service expenditures reported in sections B6 and B7 are the following amounts paid out of federal funds:

Federal Program Namie (If no amounts, indicate "NONE"} Capital Outiay Debt Service Total

a. NONE $ 0.00
b. NONE B 0.00
C. NONE 0.00
d. NONE 0.00
e. NONE 0.00
f. NONE 0.00
g. NONE 0.00
h. NONE 0.00
i. NONE 0.00
f- NONE 0.00

TOTAL FEDERAL REVENUES USED FOR CAPITAL OUTLAY AND DEBT SERVICE 0.00 0.00 0.00

2. Community Services Expenditures .
Pruvide the amount of State and Local funds reported in Section B that were expended for Community Services Activities:
Amount

I

Objects of Expenditures (Enter "0.00" if none)

Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00

Noncertificated 3alaries 2000-2999 0.00

Employ ee Benefits 3000-3999 except

3801-3802 0.00
d. Books and Supplies 40004999 0.00
e. Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 0.00

TOTAL COMMUNITY SERVICES EXPENDITURES 0.00

3. Supplemental State and Local Expenditures resulting from a Presidentially Declared Disaster

Brief Description i.e., COVID-19 (If no

Date of Presidential Disaster Declaration amounts, indicate “None") Amount
a. 03/13/20 7435-Learning Recovery Emerg Block Grant 9,642.36
b.
c.
d.
TCTAL SUPPLEMENTAL EXPENDITURES (Should not be negativ e) 9,642.36

4. State and Local Expenditures to be Used for ESSA Annuat Maintenance of Effort Calculation:

Resuits of this calculation will be used for comparison with 2021-22 expenditures. Failure to maintain the required 90 percent expenditure leve! on either an aggregate or per capita
expenditure basis may result in reduction to allocations for covered programs in 2024-25.

a. Total Expenditures (B#) 4,967,694.57
b. Less Federal Expenditures (Total A2) _
{Revenues are used as proxy for expenditures because most federal revenues are normally recognized in the period that
qualify ing expenditures are incurred] 135,289.57
c. Subtotal of State & Local Expenditures T 4,832,405.00
[a minus b)
d. Less Community Services 0.00
[L2 Total]
e. Less Capital Outlay & Debt Service 0.00
{Total B6 plus objects 7438 ano 7439, less L1 Tolal, less objects €600 and 6910] )
f. Less Supplemental Expenditures made as the result of a Presidentially 9,642.36

Califomia Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V6.1

File: ALT_UA, Version 2

Page 4 Printed: 9/14/2023 9:54 AM



Family Partnership Charter 2022-23 Unaudited Actuals

Blochman Union Elementary Charter School Alternative Form

Santa Barbara County Alternative Form
Declared Disaster

TOTAL STATE & LOCAL EXPENGITURES SUBJECT TO MOE

{c minus d minus e minus f)

Califomia Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V6.1
File: ALT_UA, Version 2 Page 5

42 69112 0111773
Form ALT
D8AUSZDE3D(2022-23)

4,822,762.64

Printed: 9/14/2023 9:54 AM






4269112 Blochman
Union Elem District

4949 Foxen Canyon Rd., Santa Maria, CA 93454-9666
Generated on 10/01/2023 09:58:46 AM  Page 1 of 1

Attendance/Membership Summary Report
Start/End Date: 09/01/2023 - 09/30/2023 School(s): 1 Calendar(s); 2

Grade:5,6,7,8,TK, K, 1,2,3,4

SUMMARY  Total Schools: 1 Total Calendars: 2
Student Membership Absent Present Unexcused Absences PercentIn
Grade Count Days Days Days ADM ADA Days Avg. Daily Attendance
5 23 460 43 a7 23.00 20.85 4 0.20 90.65%
6 24 480 21 459 24.00 22.95 5 0.25 95.62%
7 23 460 31 429 23.00 21.45 3 0.15 93.26%
8 19 380 16 364 19.00 18.20 2 0.10 95.79%
TK 0 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 0.00 N/A
K 20 400 4 359 20.00 17.95 3 0.15 89.75%
1 13 260 10 250 13.00 12.50 0 0.00 96.15%
2 24 480 17 463 24.00 23.15 2 0.10 96.46%
3 19 380 24 356 19.00 17.80 5 0.25 93.68%
4 21420 15 405 21.00 20.25 1 0.05 96.43%
Total 10 186 3720 218 3502 186.00 175.10 25 1.25 94.14%

School: Benjamin Foxen School

Calendar: 23-24 Blochman 5-8

Student Membership Absent Present Unexcused Absences Percent In
Grade Count Days Days Days ADM ADA Days Avg. Daily Attendance
5 23 460 43 47 23.00 20.85 4 0.20 90.65%
6 24 480 21 459 24.00 22.95 5 0.25 95.62%
7 23 460 31 429 23.00 21.45 3 0.15 93.26%
8 19 380 16 364 19.00 18.20 2 0.10 95.79%
Total 4 89 1780 111 1669 89.00 83.45 14 0.70 93.76%

Schoo!l: Benjamin Foxen School

Calendar: 23-24 Blochman K-4

Student Membership Absent Present Unexcused Absences Percent In
Grade Count Days Days Days ADM ADA Days Avg. Daily Attendance
TK 0 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 0.00 N/A
K 20 400 41 359 20.00 17.95 3 0.15 89.75%
1 13 260 10 250 13.00 12.50 0 0.00 96.15%
2 24 480 17 463 24.00 23.15 2 0.10 96.46%
3 19 380 24 356 19.00 17.80 5 0.25 93.68%
4 2 420 15405 2100 2025 1 005  96.43%
Total 6 97 1940 107 1833 97.00 91.65 1 0.55 94.48%
















* Administer the CSPS to all parents, guardians, or other caregivers of students in all grades and schools in
the school.

® Bach family (parent/guardian/caregiver) should complete only one survey per school regardless of number
of children enrolled in the school.

PAYMENT
Make Fayment of all CalSCHLS fees, at the current rates for the aiplicable school year within thirty (30)

days of completion of services and receipt of delivetables. See attached fee schedule for the 2023-2024
school year.

II. WESTED AGREES TO PROVIDE:

* Comprehensive technical assistance via email and phone.

® Access to the CHKS online system.

®  Access to the CSSS online system.

® Access to the CSPS online system and master copy of the survey instrument for paper administration.
® Access to the CalSCHLS System website (calschls.org).

®  Access to the integrated CalSCHLS Administration Instructions on each of the survey websites, which shall
cover the tasks that need to be performed in conducting the surveys, and provide step-by-step instructions to
School staff with responsibility for coordinating the survey.

®  Access to the CalSCHLS Administration PowerPoint presentation, which shall be posted on the CalSCHLS
website.

® Monthly editions of the School Climate Connection Newsletter during the school year.

® Scanning and online setvices.

* School-level reports within six to ten weeks after receipt of accurate and complete survey
information and materials.

III. ACCESS

Under the Public Records Act, any third-party (for example, the media) can request existing district reports from
CDE. Raw data may be provided to public agencies and research agencies by request for analyses only after the
requesting agency has executed an agreement with WestEd and/or CDE and has agreed to conditions of
strict confidentiality in compliance with state and federal regulations including, but not limited to, the Family Educational
Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) (20 US.C. § 1232g; 34 CFR part 99), the California Information Practices Act (California Civil Code
§ 1798 et. seq.), and the Privacy Act of 1974, as amended (5 US.C. § 552).

CalSCHLS Regional Center staff post District CalSCHLS reports (CHKS and CSSS) to the CalSCHLS System

websites in November of the year following survey administration.

IV.  CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT

Schools agreeing to administer any of the CalSCHLS surveys (CHKS, CSSS, and CSPS), understand that data will
be subject to the conditions stated above. Once produced, district-level repotts will be available to outside agencies
via the website or upon request, and raw data may be provided to public and research agencies for analysis under

ot conditions of confidentiality.

-2 CALSCHLS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING




School further agrees to use the CalSCHLS surveys only for use in its own school, and only for so long as this MOU is in effect.

V. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

a. Terms. This MOU is effective on September 1, 2023 and expites on June 30, 2024.

b. Amendments. This MOU may be amended at any time by mutual agreement of the parties without additional consideration,
provided that before any amendment shall take effect, it shall be in writing and signed by both patties.

c. Severability. The provisions of this MOU are severable and the unenforceability of any provision of this MOU shall not affect
the enforceability of any other provision hereof.

d. Limitation of Liability. Each party shall bear all costs, risk, and liabilities incutred by it arising out if its obligations and efforts
under this MOU. Neither party shall have any right to reimbursement, payment or compensation of any kind from the other
party, unless expressly agreed to in writing.

e. Indemnification. School shall defend, indemnify, and hold WestEd, its officers, agents, and employees harmless from and
against any and all liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees), or claims for injury or damages atising out of
the performance of this MOU but only in proportion to and to the extent such liability, loss, expense, attorneys' fees, or claims
for injury or damages are caused by or resulting from the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of School, its officers,
agents, or employees.

WestEd shall defend, indemnify, and hold School, its officers, agents, and employees harmless from and against any and all
liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees), or claims for injury or damages atising out of the petformance of
this MOU but only in proportion to and to the extent such Jability, loss, expense, attorneys' fees, or claims for injuty ot
damages are caused by or resulting from the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of WestEd, its officers, agents, or
employees.

f.  Dispute resolution. School and WestEd shall exercise commercially reasonable efforts to settle any claim, controversy, ot
dispute (collectively, "Dispute") arising out of or relating to this MOU. The patties shall discuss any Dispute no later than
thirty (30) days after either party gives written notice to the other party of a Dispute, including the legal and factual basis for
such Dispute. No arbitration or other proceeding may be commenced before the parties have met pursuant to this provision.
In the event that a Dispute cannot be resolved through good faith negotiations, the patties agree that such Dispute shall be
finally settled through binding arbitration. The arbitration shall be administered by JAMS, in San Francisco, California,
pursuant to its Comprehensive Arbitration Rules and Procedures. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and conclusive
upon the parties. Judgment on the award rendered by the arbitrators may be entered in any court having jurisdiction.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, either party may seek injunctive or provisional relief to protect confidential information at any
time.

g Assighment. School shall not voluntarily or by operation of law, assign or otherwise transfer its rights or obligations under
this MOU without prior written consent from WestEd. Any purported assignment in violation of this paragraph shall be void.

h. Execution. This MOU has been negotiated by all parties and shall not be sttictly construed against the parties. This MOU may
be executed in one or more original, electronic, or faxed counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of
which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument. Each of the persons signing this MOU represents that he
or she has the authority to sign on behalf of and bind their respective party.

3 CALSCHLS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING




CalSCHLS

California Survey Administration Fees 2023-2024

All Fees include CDE Subsidies
Qunestions? Email s at calsehls@pwested.org
Data Dashboard

Password-Protected Data Dashboard — §75 per eligible schoo!

Districts may purchase a two-year subscription to a password-protected, private data dash board that displays up
to 10 years of CalSCHLS data at the district level and individual school level at the subsidized rate of $75 per
eligible school.

Survey-Related Fees

CHKS CSSS CSPS
Student Staff Parent

Survey Set-up Fee — per survey type $150 $150* $150
Enrollment Fee — per student enrolled $0.40
Paper Processing Fee — per parent survey paper copy returned for manual $0.40
processing
Supplementary Modules — per supplemental module $100 $100 $100
School Reports — per school, inciudes school special reports $75 $75 $75

(Elementary and secondary student reports are charged separately.)

District Raw Data — per data set $75 $75 $75
Countywide Raw Data — per data set $500 $500 $500
Countywide Repott — per report ’ $500 - $500

* Ifyou are a district surveying less than 100 students, the CSSS Survey Set-up Fee will be waived.

. Custom Setvices

Custom Modules - $200 development fee for every three questions or fraction thereof; §100 for subsequent use of the
same module (with no changes)

Custom Wotkshops — §725 per hour (for staffing-related costs), plus travel excpenses

Other Custom Requests — $700 per honr

-4 CALSCHLS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING










g 40 T a8ed uejd anipuadxy 1uelo 300|g AIBUOIIAIISIQ S|BIIDIRIA] [RUOIIDNIISU| PUB DISNIA ‘SHY

_ €20Z/01/0T ‘2202/8/11T

_ 00°T19sS $

8VTIT-L£6-S08
1o psnueltliydo|q@uewydo|q
19jeys Aouen
1OILISIJ [OoYIS uolun uewydojg

ajejdwa] ueld ainyipuadx]
€702 4990190 PasInaY ZZ0T IuelD xo0|g Aleuonaldsiq s|elddlepy [euoildoniisuj pue 2Isniy sy



g Jo 7 98ed uejd ainpuadxy uelg 300|g Aleuonaldsiq Sjeuale N [BUOIIINIISU| pUB DISN| 'Sty

$ $ $ $
s s s s
s s s s
- S S - S - s
s s s s
s s s s
S S S S

:U01323s Sy} 10} |B30IgNS

*92uaIds [e1Dos-A401siH ([)
*323u3)9s 493ndwo) (1)
*‘Adesayj eipain (H)
*9po0)) uopednp3 dyy jo m.#wmﬁm u0I1329§ U} pay12ads Juazuod ay3 Suipnjoui ‘Adeladyl) jerueutd (D)
*salpnis a1uyi3 (4)
-Adeuayl} Allea Suipnjdu; ‘spe a8ensue) ysijdu3 (3)
-Adel131l] [RIUBWIUOIIAUD Sulpndul ‘adudids (Q)
"sanewayien (J)
‘sofen8uej ppom (9)
‘syle Sujwuopad pue jensiA (V)
:seade 323[qns Suimoj|o} 3y} uj ‘sjeraalewt _m:o_uu:bmf alinboe pue Juswdojanap jeuoissajoid paudije-spiepuels uieiqo (T)

10} 5j00YDs [e129ds 21e3S 3y PUe ‘S|00YIS JILIBYD ‘SIDLIISIP [O0YIS ‘UOIEINP3 JO S3J1Y0 AJUNOD 03 UoEIO|je 104 ‘JuelD }00[g Aeuonaldsig
SjeIIa1R Al [BUOIIINIISU| PUB “DISNIAl ‘SLIY 343 YSI|gRIS3 03 UoIIeINp3 Jo Juawnedaq 21e1s Syl 01 puny [elauan ay) woly pateldoidde Agaiay
s1(000°S88°095'€S) S4BJIOP PUBSNOY] 3AY-A1YSIa paspuny 1ySia Uol||iw Abis Pa1puny aAi UOI||ig 33.y3 JO wins 3yl ‘Jeak [edsy £7-7Z0Z 3y1 40 (¢)

94 "I9S 68T gV YET "09S 181 gV



g9 J0 € a8ed uejd ain}ipuadx3 juedo) ¥20jg AIBUOI}BUISIQ S|BIBIBIA |BUOIIDNIISU] PUB DISNIA ‘SHY

s s s s
S $ $ $
S $ $ $

: s - s - s - s -
S S $ $
S $ $ $
$ $ $ $

:UOI1}I3S Sy} 10} [e10IqNS

$
s
s
$
s
s
S

*aSenSue| auo ueyy aJow Jo uoijeuIqwod e Jo ‘aensue| awoy s|idnd ‘ysijSu3l ul 3|qejieAe aq pue s3d2U3LIAAX3 AjUNWWOD

pue awoy ,sjidnd 03 JueAdjas Ajjedn3jnd aJe Jey} SaLeqi] WOoOoISSe|d pue Jooyds paseq-a}s JO Judawysi|qelsa ayl ysnoayy sjidnd 10} poddns
apinoad 03 pash aq s3x33 JueAd[aJ Ajjeanyjnd pue SUoi3I3||03 jooq sy} 1yl 34n3e|si3a] ay} Jo Judlul Y} si 3] “Buipeal juapuadapui spdnd uoddns
031 ‘saden3uej awoy ,sjidnd pue ysijSu3 yioq uj ‘syxay pa|anad] Suipn|oui ‘sIX3} JUBAI|AJ Aj|ein}nd ule3qo pue suoi3d3||od HOOoq ISIIAIP dojanaq (g)

1U0I1329s S1Y} 10} [e101qNnS

$ $ $ $ $
$ S S s $
$ s S s s
- S - S - S - S - s
s s s S s
s s s s s
S S S S S

, *Aeid ySnouyj Suiusesj pue ‘uoneanpa jedisAyd ‘Adeuals
[enSip ‘Adesay] eipaw ‘Sujuiea) [eUOIIOWI-|RID0S dAIJRWIOjSUER] ‘selqiue ‘sa13o3epad paseq-jasse ‘saiSaled)s adlisnl aA11RI0}S3I puE UOLIe[eISIIP
uo Suiures3 Suipnoui ‘a3ew)d jooyds Suiroadwii 10} sadndeld 35ag 03 psusije Juawdojaaap [euoissajold pue sjellajew [euoildniisul uieigqo (2)



9 }0 ¢ 28ed uejd a4nypuadx3 JueiH ¥20jg AJBUOIIAIISI S|BIIIIBIAl [BUOIIINIISU| PUR DISNIA ‘SHIY

S S S $ $
S S s S S
S S s S S
- S - S S S - $
S S S S S
S $ s S S
S S S s S

:U0193s SIY} JO} jer01gns

*uonaNJ3sul uos1ad-u) 1oy uado sjooyIs pue gT-AIAOD Woj djes els pue sjidnd dasy 03 Atessadau ase Aayl §i ‘saun}ipuadxa Jefiwis J9ylo pue
‘sapesddn uoie|iuan ‘s3s93 6T-AINOD ‘saijddns Suluea)d ‘sysew uawdinba aAaj04d [euossad asinboe O1wapued 6T-AINOD 8Y3 03 pajejal sy ()

00°T19°SS S - S - $ 00°TI9'SS $ - $  :U01399S SIY} Joj [e103gNS
: s - s - s - s - s
: s - s - s - s -8
- s - s - s - s - s
: s - s - s - s - s
: s - s - s - s - s
S - S - $ 00TI9SS $ - S

00'TT9'SS .

-S9SBAJIUI 3SOD BJED Y)|ESY pUE JUSWALIIRJ 01 ‘paliwi] Jou Ing Suipnju; ‘s3sod |euonesado (v)



9 0 G 93ed uejd a4nupuadx3 eln 330|g AIeuoi1a43si( S{eLIB1RIAl |RUOII3NIISU] pUB DISNN ‘SUY

- 1UOI3D9S SIY] 104 [B103gNS

-sweSo.d uoizednpa disnw pue sue poddns 01 -+ [(2) uo13d3s 1ad]



9 jo g a8ed ue|d 84n)ipuadx3 JUeJD 320]g AJBUOI1DJISI(J S|BIJS1BI\ |BUOIIONIISU] PUB “JISN|A ‘SHY

‘uejd panoudde Apoq Jo pieoq SutuiaAos 119yl yum

JU3]SISUOD UO01123S SiYy1 01 Juensind paAladal $321nosal Aue puadxa j00YdS J31IBYD JO ‘UOI1EINPS JO 3010 AJUNOD ‘1DLIISIP [OOYDS LIed ey ainie|sidal
3y1 0 Jualul ay1 s 1] “Sunaaw dygnd pajnpayds AjJeinsdal e 1e uoIId3S SiYl 03 Juensind PaAladal spuny jo ainypuadxa ayi oy ueid e snoudde pue ssnasip
jleys uo11d3s siyy 01 uensund spuny SUiAId3J jOOYIS JAHEYD JO ‘UOIIRINP3 JO 321140 AJUNOD ‘1O11ISIP j00YIS YIea jO Apoq 1o pieoq 3uluianod ayj (o)

"Sallelql WOOJISSe|D pUe JoOYdS 104 SY00( ‘0} pajiwl| 10U SI INg ‘S3apNnjoul S|e1I1ewW [euojIdNJIISul pausdije-spJepuels ‘uoildas siys jo sasodind 1o4 (p)

'swesdoud uo1yeonpa disnw pue sue yoddns 01 pue (e) UOISIAIPgNS JO ‘BAISN[DUL
‘(g) 03 (T) sydea8esed uj pajou sasod.nd ay3 1o} UOIIDIS Sy 03 JUBNSING PaAIadaJ S32IN0s3J 3sn Ajjeuotziodosd 01 ‘pasinbau jou Ing ‘padeinodus
ale saipuade |euol1eINP3 |RI0T "1R3A |BISI} G7—SZ07 3y} YSn04y3 3d0urIqUINDUS 10} J[qe|ieAR 3 |[BYS UO[II3S S1y3 03 Juensund palendoidde Suipuny ()

‘uoissiwgns T [|1e4 ¢¢—-T120¢

31 JO se WalsAg ele( JUaWA3IYIY jidnd [euipn}iBuoT elulojijed 3yl ul palodal Se JuaLW||oJua 3yl Jo Juaduad /6 39 01 pawaap a3 ||eys jooyds

[e1nads a1e1s yoea J0j aduepuanie Ajlep aSesane ay] “JeaA |edsly ZZ—T 20T 3yl 104 Juswuoipodde |edidund puodas a3yl JO se pauodal a1am s1aquinu
3soy3 se ‘aAIsnjoul ‘ZT 03 T sapess pue uanesiapury 104 dduepualie Ajiep a8esaAe jo Hun uad Junowe [enba ue 4o siseq 3yl Uo s|ooyds je1dads aiels ayl
PUB ‘S|00Y2S J31BYD ‘SID1IISIP [00YIS ‘UOI1eINPa JO S3D140 AJunod 0} Ajjeuoiodold spuny uoipiodde [|eys uoianiIsuj 21 qnd Jo uapuajuuadng ayl (q)

:aea A Ag sjero)
(swesSoad uoireanpg Jisnjp pue suy) 19 uoi3S [eloIgns
(6T - QINOD) :§ uo1d3s [er01gNS

(s350) |euonesadQ) ;¢ uoildas |e10IgNg
(suo1d9|0) joog asidaAIq) i€ UO1IIAS |e30IgNS
(a3ewi)) jooyas Suinoiduil) :z UoIIIDS [BI0IGNS
(sjelsa1eAl JlRUONIDNIISUL/Ad) T UOIID3S [el0IgNS

00°TT9‘SS

$
$
S
$ 00TT9'SS
$
$
$

00°T19'SS

vr N un N n
1
v N N wn 0N n

$
S S
S S
S - S -
S S
S S
$ $

sainjipuadx3 jo Alewiwing






Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 1160: Political Processes Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017

The Governing Board has a responsibility to actively advocate fiscal and public policy that supports the district's
schools and the children in the community. The Board shall be proactive in defining the district's advocacy agenda
based on the district's vision and goals and the needs of the district and community. The Board's advocacy efforts
shall be conducted in accordance with legal requirements.

Ballot Measures/Candidates

No district funds, services, supplies, or equipment shall be used to urge the support or defeat of any ballot measure
or candidate, including any candidate for election to the Board. (Education Code 7054)"

The Board may discuss and study the potential effect of proposed or qualified ballot measures on the district's
schools at an open and agendized Board meeting. The Board's discussion of the effect of such measures shall include
an opportunity for staff and members of the public to speak on all sides of the issue. At that meeting, the Board may
adopt a position or resolution in support of or in opposition to a ballot measure. The language in any resolution
adopted by the Board shall not urge the public to take any action regarding the measure.

The Board's position on a ballot measure, including any resolution, shall be publicized only through normat district
procedures and consistent with regular district practice for reporting Board actions. Such publicity shall be for
informational purposes and shall not attempt to influence voters.

Individual School Board members may include their name in support of or opposition to a county, city, district, or
school measure on a county ballot in accordance with Elections Code 9170.

The Superintendent or designee may use district resources to provide students, parents/guardians, and community
members with fair and impartial information related to ballot measures, including information about the impact of
ballot measures on the district. (Education Code 7054)

In preparing or distributing such informational material, the Superintendent or designee shall analyze the material to
help ensure that it is an appropriate informational activity, provides a fair analysis of the issues, and does not
advocate passage or defeat of a measure or candidate.

District resources, including email or computer systems, shall not be used to disseminate campaign literature. In
addition, district resources shall not be used to purchase advertisements, bumper stickers, posters, or similar
promotional items that advocate an election result or urge voters to take any action in support of or in opposition to
a measure.

Political activity related to district bond measures shall, in addition to the above, be subject to the following
conditions:

1. The Superintendent or designee may research, draft, and prepare a district bond measure or other initiative for
the ballot, but shall not use district resources to influence voters or otherwise campaign for the measure.

2. Upon request, Board members and district administrators may appear at any time before a citizens' group to
explain why the Board called for an election on a bond measure and to answer questions. (Education Code
7054.1)

If the presentation occurs during working hours, the employee representing the district shall not urge a
citizens' group to vote for or against the bond measure.

3. The Board or any individual Board member may file a written argument for the ballot that is either for or
against any school measure. (Elections Code 9501)



Legislation

The Board's responsibility as an advocate for the district may include fobbying and outreach at the state, national,
and local levels. The Board and Superintendent or designee shall work to establish and maintain ongoing

relationships with elected officials, community leaders, and the media in order to communicate district positions and
concerns.

The Board and Superintendent shall develop an advocacy action plan to define expectations and responsibilities. This
plan may include, but is not limited to, legisiative priorities, strategies for outreach to the media and community,
development of key messages and talking points, and adoption of positions on specific legislation, regulations, or
budget proposals.

In order to strengthen legislative advocacy efforts, the district may work with organizations and coalitions and may
join associations whose representatives lobby on behalf of their members in accordance with Government Code
53060.5.

The district may provide fair and impartial information about legislative issues affecting schools and children and shail
inform the community about its advocacy activities. However, informational materials about legislation shall not urge
the public to lobby the legislature, Governor, or state agencies on behalf of the district.

As necessary, the Board may direct the Superintendent or designee to draft legislative or regulatory proposals which
serve the district's interests.

Legal Advocacy

The Board recognizes that some issues are more appropriately addressed judicially rather than legislatively. When a
legal issue is likely to set a state or national precedent, the district may join with other districts or parties in order to
resolve the issue through litigation or other appropriate means.

Political Forums

Forums on political issues may be held in district facilities as long as the forum is made available to all sides of the
issue on an equitable basis. (Education Code 7058)




Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 1330: Use Of School Facilities Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 12/10/2019

The Governing Board believes that school facilities and grounds are a vital community resource which should be used
to foster community involvement and development. Therefore, the Board authorizes the use of school facilities by
district residents and community groups for purposes specified in the Civic Center Act, to the extent that such use
does not interfere with school activities or other school-related uses.

The Superintendent or designee shall give priority to school-related activities in the use of school facilities and
grounds. Other uses authorized under the Civic Center Act shall be on a first-come, first-served basis.

For the effective management and control of school facilities and grounds, the Superintendent or designee shall
maintain procedures and regulations that: (Education Code 38133)

1. Aid, encourage, and assist groups desiring to use school facilities for approved activities

2. Preserve order in school facilities and on school grounds and protect school facilities, including the designation
of a person to supervise this task, if necessary

3. Ensure that the use of school facilities or grounds is not inconsistent with their use for school purposes and
does not interfere with the regular conduct of schoolwork

Subject to prior approval by the Board, the Superintendent or designee may grant the use of school facilities or
grounds on those days on which district schoois are closed. (Education Code 37220)

There shall be no advertising on school facilities and grounds except as specified in Board Policy 1325 - Advertising
and Promotion.

As necessary to ensure efficient use of school facilities, the Superintendent or designee may, with the Board's
approval, enter into an agreement for the joint use of any school facilities or grounds. The Board shall approve any
such agreement only if it determines that it is in the best interest of the district and the community.

Fees

The Board shall adopt a comprehensive schedule of fees to be charged for community use of school facilities and
grounds, including, but not limited to, the multipurpose room(s), playing or athletic field(s), track and field venue(s),
tennis court(s), and outdoor basketball court(s). The schedule of fees shall be prepared in accordance with 5 CCR
14037-14041. (5 CCR 14041)

The Board believes that the use of school facilities or grounds should not result in an expense to the district. The
Superintendent or designee shall charge all groups granted the use of school facilities or grounds under the Civic
Center Act an amount not to exceed direct costs determined in accordance with 5 CCR 14037-14041. (Education
Code 38134)

Additionally, when any use of school facilities or grounds is for religious services, the district shall charge an amount
at least equal to the district's direct costs. (Education Code 38134)

Groups shall be charged fair rental value when using school facilities or grounds for entertainment or meetings where
admission is charged or contributions solicited and net receipts are not to be expended for charitable purposes or for
the welfare of the district's students. (Education Code 38134)

Calculating Direct Costs



Direct costs to be charged for community use of each, or each type of, school facility or grounds shall be calculated
in accordance with 5 CCR 14038 and may reflect the community's proportionate share of the following costs:
(Education Code 38134; 5 CCR 14038-14041)

1. Capital direct costs calculated in accordance with 5 CCR 14039, including the estimated costs of maintenance,
repair, restoration, and refurbishment of non-classroom space school facilities or grounds

2. Operational direct costs calculated in accordance with 5 CCR 14040, including estimated costs of supplies,
utilities, janitorial services, other services performed by district employees and/or contracted workers, and
salaries and benefits paid to district employees directly associated with the administration of the Civic Center
Act to operate and maintain school facilities and grounds

Direct cost fees shall not be discounted to any group or organization except when the discount is specifically
authorized in the adopted fee schedule. (5 CCR 14041)

Expending Funds Collected as Capital Direct Costs

Any funds collected as capital direct costs shall be deposited into a special fund to be used only for capital
maintenance, repair, restoration, and refurbishment of school facilities and grounds. (5 CCR 14042)

Use of School Facility as Polling Place

The Board may authorize the use of school buildings as polling places, or vote centers for election day. The Board
may also authorize the use of school buildings, without cost, for the storage of voting machines and other vote-
tabulating devices. However, if a city or county elections official specifically requests the use of a school building as a
polling place, or vote center on election day and/or during the 10 days preceding election day, as well as during key
dates necessary for drop-off, set-up, and pick-up of election materials, as determined by the elections official, the
Board shall allow its use for such purpose. If school will be in session, the Superintendent or designee shall identify to
elections officials the specific areas of the school buildings not occupied by school activities that will be allowed for
use as a polling place or vote center. (Elections Code 12283)

When a school is used as a polling place or vote center, the Superintendent or designee shall provide the elections
official a site with an adequate amount of space that will allow the precinct board to perform its duties in a manner
that will not impede, interfere, or interrupt the normal process of voting and shall make a telephone line for Internet
access available for use by local elections officials if so requested. The Superintendent or designee shall make a
reasonable effort to ensure that the site is accessible to persons with disabilities. (Elections Code 12283)

The Superintendent or designee shall establish procedures to ensure student safety and minimize disruptions
whenever school is in session while the facilities are being used as a polling place or vote center.




Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Regulation 1330: Use Of School Facilities Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 12/10/2019

Application for Use of Facilities

Any person applying for the use of any school facilities or grounds on behalf of any society, group, or organization
shall present written authorization from the group or organization to make the application.

Anyone applying to use school facilities shall do so as specified in district procedures and in accordance with law.

Civic Center Use

Subject to district policies and regulations, school facilities and grounds shall be available to citizens and community
groups as a civic center for the following purposes: {Education Code 32282, 38131, 51860)

-

10.

11.

. Public, literary, scientific, recreational, educational, or public agency meetings

The discussion of matters of general or public interest

The conduct of religious services for temporary periods, on a one-time or renewable basis, by any church or
religious organization

Child care programs to provide supervision and activities for children of preschool and elementary school age

. The administration of examinations for the selection of personnel or the instruction of precinct board members

by public agencies

Supervised recreational activities, including, but not limited to, sports league activities for youth that are
arranged for and supervised by entities, including religious organizations or churches, and in which youth may
participate regardless of religious belief or denomination

A community youth center

Mass care and welfare shelters during disasters or other emergencies affecting the public health and welfare
A ceremony, patriotic celebration, or related educational assembly conducted by a veterans' organization

A veterans' organization means the American Legion, Veterans of Foreign Wars, Disabled American Veterans,
United Spanish War Veterans, Grand Army of the Republic, or other duly recognized organization of honorably
discharged soldiers, sailors, or marines of the United States, or any of their territories. (Military and Veterans
Code 1800)

Bicycle, scooter, electric bicycle, motorized bicycle, or motorized scooter safety instruction for district students
by local law enforcement, public agencies, nonprofit associations, or organizations specified in Education Code

38134

Other purposes deemed appropriate by the Governing Board

Restrictions

School facilities or grounds shall not be used for any of the following activities:

1.

2.

Any use by an individual or group for the commission of any crime or any act prohibited by law

Any use which is inconsistent with the use of school facilities for school purposes or which interferes with the
regular conduct of school or school work



3. Any use which involves the possession, consumption, or sale of drugs or any restricted substances, including
tobacco

4. Any use which involves the possession, consumption, or sale of alcoholic beverages, except for special events
approved by the Superintendent or designee pursuant to Business and Professions Code 25608 which are
covered by a special events permit pursuant to Division 9 of the Business and Professions Code and which will
occur at a time when students are not on the grounds. Any such use of school facilities shall be subject to any
limitations that may be necessary to reduce risks to the district and ensure the safety of participants, as
determined by the Superintendent or designee. Applicable limitations shall be clearly stated in the facility use
agreement to be signed by the user's representative.

The district may exclude certain school facilities from nonschool use for safety or security reasons.

Damage and Liability

Groups, organizations, or persons using school facilities or grounds shall be liable for any property damage caused by
the activity. The district may charge the amount necessary to repair the damages and may deny the group further
use of school facilities or grounds. (Education Code 38134)

Any group or organization using school facilities or grounds shall be liable for any injuries resulting from its
negligence during the use of district facilities or grounds. The group shall bear the cost of insuring against this risk
and defending itself against claims arising from this risk. (Education Code 38134)

Groups or organizations shall provide the district with evidence of insurance against claims arising out of the group's
own negligence when using school facilities. (Education Code 38134)

When permitted by law, the Superintendent or designee shall require a hold harmless agreement and indemnification
when warranted by the type of activity or the specific facilities being used.




Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Regulation 3311: Bids Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017

Advertised/Competitive Bids

The district shall advertise for any of the following: (Public Contract Code 20111)

1. A public project contract that involves an expenditure of $15,000 or more, including a contract for
construction, reconstruction, erection, alteration, renovation, improvement, painting, repainting, demolition, or
repair work involving a district owned, leased, or operated facility

2. A contract that exceeds the amount specified in law, as annually adjusted by the Superintendent of Public
Instruction, for any of the following:

a. The purchase of equipment, materials, or supplies to be furnished, sold, or leased to the district

b. Services, not including construction services or special services and advice in accounting, financial, legal,
or administrative matters

c. Repairs that are not a public project, including maintenance

Maintenance means routine, recurring, and usual work for preserving, protecting, and keeping a district facility
operating in a safe, efficient, and continually usable condition for the intended purpose for which it was designed,
improved, constructed, altered, or repaired. Maintenance includes, but is not limited to, carpentry, electrical,
plumbing, glazing, and other craft work designed to preserve the facility, as well as repairs, cleaning, and other
operations on machinery and other permanently attached equipment. Maintenance does not include painting,
repainting, or decorating other than touchup, or among other types of work, janitorial or custodial services and
protection provided by security forces. (Public Contract Code 20115}

Instructions and Procedures for Advertised Bids

The Superintendent or designee shall call for bids by placing a notice at least once a week for two weeks in a local
newspaper of general circulation published in the district, or if no such newspaper exists, then in some newspaper of
general circulation that is circulated in the county. The Superintendent or designee also may post the notice on the
district's website or through an electronic portal. The notice shall state the work to be done or materials or supplies
to be furnished and the time and place and website where bids will be opened. (Public Contract Code 20112)

The notice shall contain the time, date, and location of any mandatory prebid conference, site visit, or meeting and
details regarding when and where project documents, including the final plan and specifications, are available. Any
such mandatory visit or meeting shall occur not less than five calendar days after the publication of the initial notice.
For lease-leaseback, design-build, and alternative design-build projects, the notice shall specify that the project is
subject to skilled and trained workforce requirements. (Education Code 17250.25, 17250.62, 17407.5; Public
Contract Code 2600, 6610)

Bid instructions and specifications shall include the following requirements and information:

1. All bidders shall certify in writing the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post-consumer materials in
products, materials, goods, or supplies offered or sold. (Public Contract Code 22152)

2. All bids for construction work shall be presented under sealed cover. The district may accept a bid that has
been submitted electronically or on paper. (Public Contract Code 20111, 20112)

The bid shall be accompanied by a form of bidder's security, including either cash, a cashier’s check payable to
the district, a certified check made payable to the district, or a bidder's bond executed by an admitted surety
insurer and made payable to the district. The security of unsuccessful bidders shall be returned in a reasonable

period of time, but in no event later than 60 days after the bid is awarded. (Public Contract Code 20111,
20112)

3. When a standardized proposal form is provided by the district, bids not presented on the standard form shall



be disregarded. (Public Contract Code 20111.5)

4. Bids shall not be accepted after the advertised bid opening time, regardless of whether the bids are actually
opened at that time. (Public Contract Code 20112)

5. When two or more identical lowest or highest bids are received, the Governing Board may determine by lot
which bid shall be accepted. {Public Contract Code 20117)

6. If the district requires that the bid include prices for items that may be added to or deducted from the scope of
work in the contract, the bid solicitation shall specify which one of the following methods will be used to
determine the lowest bid. In the absence of such a specification, only the method provided in Item #6a below
shall be used. (Public Contract Code 20103.8)

a. The lowest bid shall be the lowest total of the bid prices on the base contract without consideration of
the prices on the additive or deductive items.

b. The lowest bid shali be the lowest total of the bid prices on the base contract and those additive or
deductive items that were specifically identified in the bid solicitation as being used for the purpose of
determining the lowest bid price.

c. The lowest bid shall be the lowest total of the bid prices on the base contract and those additive or
deductive items that, when taken in order from a specifically identified list of those items in the
solicitation, and added to or subtracted from the base contract, are less than or equal to a funding
amount publicly disclosed by the district before the first bid is opened.

The lowest bid shall be determined in a manner that prevents any information that would identify any of
the bidders or proposed subcontractors or suppliers from being revealed to the district before the
ranking of all bidders from lowest to highest has been determined. {Public Contract Code 20103.8)

7. In determining the lowest bid, the district shall consider only responsive bids that conform to bid specifications
and are submitted by responsible bidders who have demonstrated trustworthiness, quality, fitness, capacity,
and experience to satisfactorily perform the public works contract.

a. When a bid is determined to be nonresponsive, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the bidder
and give the bidder an opportunity to respond to the determination.

b. When the lowest bidder is determined to be nonresponsible, the Superintendent or designee shall notify
the bidder of the right to present evidence of the bidder’s responsibility at a hearing before the Board.

8. After being opened, all submitted bids become public records pursuant to Government Code 7920.530 and
shall be made available for public review pursuant to law, Board policy, and administrative regulation.

Prequalification Procedure

When required by law or the Board, the Superintendent or designee shall establish a uniform system for rating
bidders on the basis of completed questionnaires and financial statements in order to determine the size of contracts
on which each bidder is qualified to bid. For this purpose, the Superintendent or designee shall furnish prospective
bidders a standardized prequalification questionnaire and financial record which, when completed, shall indicate a
bidder's statement of financial ability and experience in performing public works. The bidder's information shall be
verified under oath in the manner in which civil law pleadings are verified. The questionnaires and financial
statements shall not be public records and shall not be open to public inspection. (Code of Civil Procedure 446;
Public Contract Code 20111.5, 20111.6)

When any public project involves an expenditure of $1,000,000 or more and is funded or reimbursed wholly or
partly by the School Facilities Program funds or other future state school bond, the district shall prequalify
prospective bidders either quarterly or annually. The prequalification shall be valid for one year and the following
requirements shall apply: (Public Contract Code 20111.6)

1. Prospective bidders, including, but not limited to, prime, general engineering, and general building contractors
and electrical, mechanical, and plumbing subcontractors, as defined in Public Contract Code 4113 or Business
and Professions Code 7056 or 7057, as applicable, shall submit a standardized questionnaire and financial



statement 10 or more business days, as determined by the district, before the date fixed for the public opening
of sealed bids.

2. Prospective bidders shall be prequalified by the district five or more business days, as determined by the
district, before the date fixed for the public opening of sealed bids.

If the project includes electrical, mechanical, or plumbing components that will be performed by electrical,
mechanical, or plumbing contractors, the Superintendent or designee shall make available to all bidders a list of
prequalified general contractors and electrical, mechanical, and plumbing subcontractors five or more business days,
as determined by the district, before the date fixed for the public opening of sealed bids. (Public Contract Code
20111.6)

For all other contracts requiring competitive bidding, the district may establish a procedure for prequalifying bidders
on a quarterly basis and may authorize that prequalification be considered valid for up to one calendar year following
the date of the initial prequalification. Prospective bidders for such contracts shall submit the questionnaire and
financial statement at least five days before the date fixed for public opening of sealed bids and shall be prequalified
by the district at least one day before the fixed bid-opening date. (Public Contract Code 20111.5)

Award of Contract

The district shall award each contract to the lowest responsible bidder, except in the following circumstances:

1. When the contract is for the procurement and/or maintenance of electronic data processing systems and
supporting software, in which case the Board may contract with any one of the three lowest responsible
bidders (Public Contract Code 20118.1)

2. When the contract is for any transportation service which involves an expenditure of more than $10,000 and
which will be made with any person or corporation other than a common carrier, municipally owned transit
system, or a parent/guardian of a student who is to be transported, in which case the Board may contract with
other than the lowest bidder (Education Code 39802)

3. When the contract is one for which the Board has established goals and requirements relating to participation
of disabled veteran or small business enterprises in accordance with Public Contract Code 2000-2002, in
which case the Board may contract with the lowest responsible bidder who submits a responsive bid and
complies or makes a good faith effort to comply with the goals and requirements (Public Contract Code 2000-
2002)

4. When procuring a lease-leaseback contract, in which case the Board shall award the contract based on
objective criteria for determining the best combination of price and qualifications in accordance with Education
Code 17400 and 17406

5. When procuring a design-build contract for a public works project in excess of $1,000,000 in accordance with
Education Code 17250.20, in which case the Board may award the contract to either the low bid or the best
value to the district, taking into consideration, at a minimum, price, technical design and construction expertise,
and life-cycle costs (Education Code 17250.20, 17250.25)

6. When procuring an alternative design-build contract for a public works project in excess of $5,000,000 in
accordance with Education Code 17250.62, in which case the Board may award the contract to either the low
bid or the best value, taking into consideration, at a minimum design cost, general conditions, overhead, and
profit as a component of the project price; technical design and construction expertise; and life-cycle costs
(Education Code 17250.61, 17250.62)

Protests by Bidders

If the bidder believes that the award is not in compliance with taw, Board policy, or the bid specification, the bidder
may protest the award. A protest must be filed in writing with the Superintendent or designee within five working
days after receipt of notification of the contract award and shall include all documents supporting or justifying the
protest. A bidder's failure to file the protested documents in a timely manner shall constitute a waiver of the right to
protest the award of the contract.

The Superintendent or designee shall review the documents submitted with the bidder's claims and render a decision



in writing within 30 working days. The Superintendent or designee may also convene a meeting with the bidder in
order to attempt to resolve the problem.

The bidder may appeal the Superintendent or designee's decision to the Board. The Superintendent or designee shall
provide notice to the bidder of the date and time for Board consideration of the protest at least three business days
before the Board meeting. The Board's decision shall be final.

Limitation on Use of Sole Sourcing

In any contract for the construction, alteration, or repair of school facilities, the Superintendent or designee shall
ensure that the bid specification: (Public Contract Code 3002, 3400)

1. Does not directly or indirectly limit bidding to any one specific concern

2. Does not call for a designated material, product, thing, or service by a specific brand or trade name, unless the

specification is followed by the words "or equal,”" so that bidders may furnish any equal material, product, thing,
or service

In any such case, the bid specification shall provide a time period, before and/or after the award of the
contract, for the contractor to submit data substantiating the request for substituting the designated material,
product, thing, or service. If no such time period is specified, the contractor may submit the data within 35
days after the award of the contract.

When the bid is for a roof project, a material, product, thing, or service is considered "equal" to that designated if it is
equal in quality, durability, design, and appearance; will perform the intended function equally well; and conforms
substantially to the detailed requirements in the bid specification. (Public Contract Code 3002)

However, the Superintendent or designee may designate a specific material, product, thing, or service by brand or
trade name, also known as sole sourcing, if the Board has made a finding, described in the invitation for bids or
request for proposals (RFP), that a particular material, product, thing, or service is designated for any of the following
purposes: {Public Contract Code 3400)

1. To conduct a field test or experiment to determine its suitability for future use

2. To match others in use on a particular public improvement that has been completed or is in the course of
completion

3. To obtain a necessary item that is only available from one source

4. To respond to the Board's declaration of an emergency, as long as the declaration has been approved by four-
fifths of the Board when issuing the invitation for bid or RFP

Bids Not Required

Without advertising for bids and upon a determination that it is in the best interest of the district, the Board may
"piggyback” by authorizing another public corporation or agency, by contract, lease, requisition, or purchase order, to
lease data-processing equipment or to purchase materials, supplies, equipment, automotive vehicles, tractors, and
other personal property for the district in the manner that the other public corporation or agency is authorized to
make the leases or purchases from a vendor. Alternatively, if the public corporation or agency has an existing
contract with a vendor for the lease or purchase of personal property, the district may authorize the lease or
purchase of personal property directly from the vendor and make payments under the same terms that are available
to the public corporation or agency under the contract. (Public Contract Code 20118)

Without advertising for bids, the Board may enter into an energy service contract and any related facility ground
lease, when it determines that the terms of the contract and lease are in the best interest of the district and meet the
cost effectiveness requirements specified in Government Code 4217.12. The Board's determination shall be made at
a regularly scheduled public hearing of which notice is given to the public at least two weeks in advance and shall be



based on a cost and saving comparison finding specified in Government Code 4217.12. (Government Code 4217.12)

Supplementary textbooks, library books, educational films, audiovisual materials, test materials, workbooks,
instructional computer software packages, or periodicals may be purchased in any amount without taking estimates
or advertising for bids. (Public Contract Code 20118.3)

Perishable foodstuffs and seasonal commodities needed in the operations of cafeterias may be purchased through
bid or on the open market. (Education Code 38083)

Bids shall not be required for day labor under circumstances specified in Public Contract Code 20114. Day labor shall
include the use of maintenance personnel employed on a permanent or temporary basis. (Public Contract Code
20114)

In an emergency when any repairs, alterations, work, or improvement to any school facility is necessary to permit the
continuance of existing school classes or to avoid danger to life or property, the Board may, by unanimous vote and
with the approval of the County Superintendent of Schools, contract for labor and materials or supplies without
advertising for or inviting bids or may authorize the use of day labor or force account for the emergency purpose.
(Public Contract Code 1102, 20113)

The district may purchase any surplus property from the federal government or any of its agencies in any quantity
needed for the operation of its schools without taking estimates or advertising for bids. (Education Code 17602}




Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Regulation 3311.3: Design-Build Contracts Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 04/13/2021

Until January 1, 2025, the Governing Board may approve a design-build contract with a single entity for both design
and construction of any school facility in excess of $1,000,000, awarding the contract to either the low bid or the
best value as determined by evaluation of objective criteria. (Education Code 17250.20)

Additionally, until January 1, 2029, the Board may approve an alternative design-build contract with a single entity
for both design and construction of any school facility in excess of $5,000,000. Such contracts may be awarded to
the low bid or the best value, taking into consideration, at a minimum, design cost, general conditions, overhead, and
profit as a component of the project price, technical design and construction expertise, and life-cycle costs. The
district's determination of price shall be based on the open book evaluation of construction subcontracts. The
contract may be subject to further negotiations or amendment and may be terminated by the district if the district
and the design-build entity are unable to reach an agreement. (Education Code 17250.61, 17250.62, 17250.65)

Design-build documents shall not include provisions for long-term project operations, but may include operations
during a training or transition period. (Education Code 17250.25, 17250.62)

Procedures for Awarding the Contract

The procurement process for design-build and alternative design-build projects shall be as foliows: (Education Code
17250.25, 17250.35, 17250.62, 17250.65; Public Contract Code 2600)

1. Performance Specifications: The district shall prepare a set of documents setting forth the scope and estimated
price of the project. The documents may include, but are not limited to:

a. The size, type, and desired design character of the project

b. Performance specifications that cover the quality of materials, equipment, and workmanship
c. Preliminary plans or building layouts

d. Any other information deemed necessary to describe adequately the district's needs

The performance specifications and any plans shall be prepared by a design professional who is duly
licensed and registered in California.

2. 2. Prequalification: The district shall prepare and issue a request for qualifications in order to prequalify, or
develop a short list of, the design-build entities whose proposals shall be evaluated for final selection. The
request for qualifications shall include, but is not limited to, all of the following elements:

a. Identification of the basic scope and needs of the project or contract, the expected cost range, the
methodology that will be used by the district to evaluate proposals, the procedure for final selection of
the design-build entity, and any other information deemed necessary by the district to inform interested
parties of the contracting opportunity

b. Significant factors that the district reasonably expects to consider in evaluating qualifications, including
technical design and construction expertise, acceptable safety record, and all other non-price-related
factors

c. Astandard template request for statements of qualifications prepared by the district, which shall contain
all of the information required pursuant to Education Code 17250.25 or 17250.62

d. A notice that the project is subject to the skilled and trained workforce requirements specified in Public
Contract Code 2600-2603

The district also may identify specific types of subcontractors that must be included in the statement of
qualifications and proposal.



3. Request for Proposals: The district shall prepare a request for proposals (RFP) that invites prequalified or short-
listed entities to submit competitive sealed proposals in a manner prescribed by the district. The RFP shall
include the information identified in Items #2a, 2b, and 2d above and the relative importance or weight
assigned to each of the factors. If the district uses a best value selection method for a project, the district may
reserve the right to request proposal revisions and hold discussions and negotiations with responsive
proposers, in which case the district shall so specify in the request for proposals and shall publish separately or
incorporate into the request for proposals applicable procedures to be observed by the district to ensure that
any discussions or negotiations are conducted in good faith.

4. Selection Based on Low Bid: For those projects utilizing low bid as the final selection method, the bidding
process shall result in lump-sum bids by the prequalified or short-listed design-build entities, and the contract
shall be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder

5. Selection Based on Best Value: For those projects utilizing best value as a selection method, the following
procedures shall be used:

a. Competitive proposals shall be evaluated using only the criteria and selection procedures specifically
identified in the request for proposals. Criteria shall be weighted as deemed appropriate by the district.
The proposal for a design-build project, as specified in 17250.25, shall, at a minimum, include price,
unless a stipulated sum is specified; technical design and construction experience; and life-cycle costs
over 15 or more years. The proposal for an alternative design-build project, as specified in 17250.62,
shall, at a minimum, include design cost, general conditions, overhead, and profit as a component of the
project price, unless a stipulated sum for the project is specified; technical design and construction
expertise; and life-cycle costs over 15 or more years.

b. Following any discussions or negotiations with responsive proposers and completion of the evaluation
process, the responsive proposers shall be ranked on a determination of value provided, provided that no
more than three proposers are required to be ranked

c. The contract shall be awarded to the responsible entity whose proposal is determined by the district to
have offered the best value to the public

d. The district shall publicly announce the contract award, identifying the entity to which the award is made
and the basis of the award. This statement and the contract file shall provide sufficient information to
satisfy an external audit.

Skilled and Trained Workforce

A design-build entity shali not be prequalified or short-listed unless the entity provides an enforceable commitment
to the district that the entity and its subcontractors at every tier will use a skitled and trained workforce to perform
all work on the project or contract that falls within an apprenticeable occupation in the building and construction
trades. The entity may demonstrate such commitment through a project labor agreement, by becoming a party to the
district's project labor agreement, or through an agreement with the district to provide evidence of compliance on a
monthly basis during the performance of the project or contract. (Education Code 17250.25, 17250.62: Public
Contract Code 2602)

Skilled and trained workforce means that all the workers performing the work are either skilled journeypersons or
apprentices registered in a state-approved apprenticeship program. At least 60 percent of the skilled journeypersons
employed to perform the work shall be graduates of an apprenticeship program for the applicable occupation or at
least 60 percent of the hours worked by skilled journeypersons shall be performed by graduates of an apprenticeship
program, with the exception of certain occupations specified in Public Contract Code 2601 which are subject to a 30
percent threshold. (Public Contract Code 2601)

If the contractor fails to provide the monthly report demonstrating compliance with the skilled and trained workforce
requirements or provides an incomplete report, the district shall withhold further payments until a complete report is
provided. If a report does not demonstrate compliance with the skilled and trained workforce requirements, the
district shall withhold further payments until the contractor provides a sufficient plan to achieve substantial
compliance with respect to the relevant apprenticeable occupation, prior to completion of the contract or project. In
addition, the district shall forward to the Labor Commissioner a copy of the monthly report, any plan to achieve
compliance, and the district's response to that plan. (Public Contract Code 2602)




Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 3312: Contracts Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017

The Governing Board recognizes its responsibility to enter into contracts on behalf of the district for the acquisition
of equipment, supplies, services, and other resources necessary for the achievement of district goals. In exercising
this authority to enter into a contract, the Board shall ensure that the district's interest is protected, that the terms of
the contract conform to applicable legal standards, including the bidding requirements in Public Contract Code
20111.

In addition, Board members and district employees involved in the making of contracts on behalf of the district shall
comply with the district's conflict of interest policy as specified in Board Bylaw 9270 - Conflict of Interest.

The Board may, by a majority vote, delegate to the Superintendent or designee the authority to enter into contracts
on behalf of the district. To be valid or to constitute an enforceable obligation against the district, all such contracts
must be approved and/or ratified by the Board.

Every contract entered into on behalf of the district shall be made available for public inspection, except when the
law prohibits disclosure. No contract shall prohibit a district employee from disparaging the goods or services of any
contracting party.

Contracts for Non-nutritious Foods or Beverages

The district shall not enter into or renew a contract for the sale of foods or beverages that do not meet applicable
nutritional standards specified in Education Code 49431-49431.7, 5 CCR 15500-15501 or 15575-15578, or 7 CFR
210.11 or 220.12, unless the contract specifies that such sale will occur off campus or outside the time restriction
specified in the applicable law.

Before the district enters into or renews a contract that grants exclusive or nonexciusive advertising or sale of
carbonated beverages, non-nutritious beverages, or non-nutritious foods as defined in law, the Board shall ensure
that the district has sufficient internal controls in place to protect the integrity of public funds and to ensure that
funds raised as a result of the contract benefit public education. (Education Code 35182.5)

The Superintendent or designee shall develop the district's internal control procedures to protect the integrity of
public funds. Such internal controls may include, but not be limited to, the following:

1. Procedures that produce accurate and reliable financial statements and, at the same time, safeguard the assets,
financial resources, and integrity of every employee responsible for handling money or property. Control
systems shall be systematically evaluated and revised to keep pace with the changing responsibilities of
management.

2. Procedures to ensure that district personnel do not handle cash or product at the school site. The contract
shall specify that the vendor stock the machines and shall provide cash accounting, along with a check, for
district proceeds directly to the control office.

To ensure that funds raised by the contract benefit district schools and students:
1. The Superintendent or designee may invite parents/guardians, students, staff, and interested community

members to make recommendations regarding the contract, including recommendations as to how the funds
will be spent in a manner that benefits public education.

2. Prior to ratifying the contract, the Board shall designate the specific programs and activities that will be funded
by the proceeds of the contract and consider how the contract reflects the district's vision and goals.



3. The contract shall specify that the contractor report, on a quarterly basis, to the Superintendent or designee
the number of food items or beverages sold within the district and the amount of money raised by the sales.
The Superintendent or designee shall report these amounts to the Board on a regular basis.

4. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the contract does not limit the ability of student and parent
organizations to plan and operate fundraising activities.

Any contract for the sale or advertisement of non-nutritious foods or carbonated or non-nutritious beverages shall
be entered into on a competitive bid basis pursuant to Public Contract Code 20111 or through the issuance of a
Request for Proposal. (Education Code 35182.5)

The Board shall not enter into or renew any contract that grants exclusive or nonexclusive advertising or sale of
carbonated beverages, non-nutritious beverages, on non-nutritious foods until parents/guardians, students, and
members of the public have had an opportunity to comment on the contract at a public hearing held during a
regularly scheduled Board meeting. The Board shall clearly, and in a manner recognizable to the general public,
identify in the agenda the contract to be discussed at the meeting. (Education Code 35182.5)

The public hearing shall include, but not be limited to, a discussion of the nutritional value of foods and beverages
sold within the district; the availability of fresh fruit, vegetables, and grains in school meals and snacks, including
locally grown and organic produce; the amount of fat, sugar, and additives in the foods and beverages discussed; and
barriers to student participation in school breakfast and lunch programs. (Education Code 35182.5)

The contract shall be accessible to the public and may not include a confidentiality clause that would prevent the
district or a district school from making any part of the contract public. (Education Code 35182.5)

Contracts for Electronic Products or Services

The Board shall not enter into a contract for electronic products or services that requires the dissemination of
advertising to students, unless the Board: (Education Code 35182.5)

1. Entersinto the contract at a noticed, public hearing of the Board.

2. Makes a finding that the electronic product or service is or would be an integral component of the education of
students.

3. Makes a finding that the district cannot afford to provide the electronic product or service unless it contracts
to permit dissemination of advertising to students.

4. As part of the district's normal, ongoing communication to parents/guardians, provides written notice that the
advertising will be used in the classroom or other learning center.

5. Offers parents/guardians the opportunity to request in writing that their child not be exposed to the program
that contains the advertising. A request shall be honored for the school year in which it is submitted, or longer
if specified, but may be withdrawn by the parents/guardians at any time.

Contracts for Digital Storage and Maintenance of Student Records

The district may enter into or renew a contract with a third party for the purpose of providing services, including
cloud-based services, for the digital storage, management, and retrieval of student records and/or to provide digital
educational software that authorizes a third-party provider of digital educational software to access, store, and use
student records. For these purposes, student records include any information maintained by the district that is
directly related to a student and any information acquired directly from the student through the use of instructional
software or applications assigned to the student by a teacher or other district employee, and do not include de-
identified information. (Education Code 49073.1)

Any such contract shall contain all of the following: (Education Code 49073.1)

1. Astatement that student records continue to be the property of and under the control of the district



If applicable, a description of the means by which students may retain possession and control of their own
student-generated content, as defined in Education Code 49073.1, including options by which a student may
transfer student-generated content to a personal account

A prohibition against the third party using any information in the student record for any purpose other than
those required or specifically permitted by the contract

A description of the procedures by which a parent/guardian or a student age 18 years or older may review
personally identifiable information in the student's records and correct erroneous information

A description of the actions the third party will take, including the designation and training of responsible
individuals, to ensure the security and confidentiality of student records

A description of the procedures for notifying the affected parent/guardian, or the affected student if age 18
years or older, in the event of an unauthorized disclosure of the student's records

A certification that a student's records shall not be retained or available to the third party upon completion of
the terms of the contract and a description of how that certification will be enforced, except that these
requirements shall not apply to student-generated content if the student chooses to establish or maintain an
account with the third party for the purpose of storing that content

A description of how the district and the third party will jointly ensure compliance with the federal Family
Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 20 USC 1232¢g

A prohibition against the third party using personally identifiable information in student records to engage in
targeted advertising

Contracts for Personal Services

In order to achieve cost savings, the district may enter into or renew a contract for any personal service that is
currently or customarily performed by classified employees, if the contract does not displace school district
employees and meets other conditions specified in Education Code 45103.1. To enter into or renew such a contract,
the Board shall ensure that the district meets the numerous conditions specified in Education Code 45103.1.

In addition, the district may enter into or renew any contract for personal service without meeting the conditions
described above, if any of the following conditions exists: (Education Code 45103.1)

1.

The contract is for new district functions and the Legislature has specifically mandated or authorized the
performance of the work by independent contractors

The services contracted are not available within the district, cannot be performed satisfactorily by district
employees, or are of such a highly specialized or technical nature that the necessary expert knowledge,
experience, and ability are not available through the district

The services are incidental to a contract for the purchase or lease of real or personal property, including, but
not be limited to, agreements to service or maintain office equipment or computers that are leased or rented

The district's policy, administrative, or legal goals and purposes cannot be accomplished through the utilization
of persons selected pursuant to the regular or ordinary district hiring process

. The nature of the work is such that the criteria for emergency appointments, as defined in Education Code

45103.1, apply

The contractor will provide equipment, materials, facilities, or support services that could not feasibly be
provided by the district in the location where the services are to be performed

The services are of such an urgent, temporary, or occasional nature that the delay that would result from using
the district's regular or ordinary hiring process would frustrate their very purpose




Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 3460: Financial Reports And Accountability Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 01/12/2023

The Governing Board is committed to ensuring public accountability and the fiscal health of the district. The Board
shall adopt sound fiscal management policies and practices, oversee the district's financial condition, and continually
evaluate whether the district's budget and financial operations support the district's goals for student achievement.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that district financial reports are prepared in accordance with law and in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and financial reporting standards stipulated by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board and the California Department of Education (CDE). The Superintendent
or designee shall establish a system of ongoing internal controls to ensure the reliability of financial reporting.

When required by law or as directed by the Board, the Superintendent or designee shall submit to the Board reports
of the district's financial status, including, but not limited to, any report specified in this Board policy or
accompanying administrative regulation. When submission of any such report to a local, state, and/or federal agency
requires prior Board approval, the Superintendent or designee shall provide the report to the Board in sufficient time
to enable the Board to carefully review the report without breaking any applicable submission deadline.

The Board shall regularly assess the district's financial position and communicate the results to the public, and shall
use financial reports to determine the actions and budget amendments, if any, that are needed to ensure the district's
financial stability. If district conditions predict fiscal distress or indicate that the district might not be able to meet its
fiscal obligations, the Board and Superintendent or designee shall take action to resolve these conditions without
delay. The Board shall work cooperatively with the County Superintendent of Schools to improve the district's fiscal
health and may contract with an external individual or organization to provide the district with needed advice or
fiscal management or training.

If the district is facing fiscal insolvency, the Board may consider applying to the state for an emergency
apportionment that exceeds 200 percent of the district’s recommended reserve. Before applying for such emergency
apportionment, the Board shall discuss, at a regular or special meeting, the need for an emergency apportionment
and receive testimony regarding the apportionment from parents/guardians, the exclusive representatives of
employees of the district, and other members of the community. (Education Code 41326)

Unaudited Actual Receipts and Expenditures

On or before September 15, the Board shall approve and file with the County Superintendent a statement of the
district's unaudited actual receipts and expenditures for the preceding fiscal year. The Superintendent or designee
shall prepare this statement using the state's standardized account code structure (SACS) as prescribed by the
Superintendent of Public Instruction (SPI). (Education Code 42100)

Gann Appropriations Limit Resolution

On or before September 15, the Board shall, at a regular or special meeting, adopt a resolution identifying, pursuant
to Government Code 7900-7914, the district's estimated appropriations limit for the current fiscal year and the
actual appropriations limit for the preceding fiscal year. Documentation used to identify these limits shall be made
available to the public on the day of the Board meeting. (Education Code 42132; Government Code 7910)

Interim Reports/Certification of Ability to Meet Fiscal Obligations

Each fiscal year, the Superintendent or designee shall submit two interim reports to the Board. The first report shall
cover the district's financial and budgetary status for the period ending October 31 and the second report shall cover
the period ending January 31. These reports and supporting data shall be made available by the district for public
review. (Education Code 42130)

Within 45 days after the close of the period reported, the Board shall approve the interim report and, on the basis of
the interim report and any additional financial information known by the Board, shall certify in writing whether the



district will be able to meet its fiscal obligations for the remainder of the fiscal year and, based on current forecasts,

for the two subsequent fiscal years. The certification shall be classified as one of the following: (Education Code
42130, 42131)

1. "Positive certification” indicating that the district will meet its financial obligations for the current fiscal year
and two subsequent fiscal years

2. "Qualified certification" indicating that the district may not meet its financial obligations for the current fiscal
year or two subsequent fiscal years

3. "Negative certification” indicating that the district will be unable to meet its financial obligations for the
remainder of the fiscal year or the subsequent fiscal year

The Superintendent or designee shall submit a copy of each interim report and certification to the County
Superintendent using the state's SACS software, as prescribed by the SPI. (Education Code 42130, 42131)

If the district's certification is subsequently changed by the County Superintendent from a positive to a qualified or
negative certification, or from a qualified to a negative certification, the Board may appeal the decision to the SPi
within five days of receiving the notice of change. (Education Code 42131)

Whenever the district receives a qualified or negative certification from the Board or the County Superintendent, the
Superintendent or designee shall cooperate in the implementation of any remedial actions taken or prescribed by the
County Superintendent. (Education Code 42131)

If the second interim report is accompanied by a qualified or negative certification, the Board shall, no later than June
1, provide to the County Superintendent, the State Controller, and the SPI a financial statement as of April 30 (“third
interim report") that projects the district's fund and cash balances through June 30. (Education Code 42131)

If at any time during the fiscal year, the County Superintendent concludes that the district's budget does not comply
with the standards and criteria for financial stability and conducts a comprehensive review of the district's financial
and budgetary conditions, the Board shall review any report of the County Superintendent's findings and
recommendations at a public Board meeting. Within 15 days of receiving the report, the district shall notify the
County Superintendent and the SPI of the Board's proposed actions on the recommendation. (Education Code
42637)

Audit Report

By April 1 of each year, the Board shall provide for an annual audit of the district's books and accounts. (Education
Code 41020)

To conduct the audit, the Board shall select a certified public accountant or public accountant licensed by the State
Board of Accountancy from among those deemed qualified by the State Controller. (Education Code 41020,
41020.5)

Except when, as determined by the Education Audits Appeal Panel, no otherwise eligible auditor is available, a public
accounting firm whose lead or coordinating audit partner having primary responsibility for the audit or whose audit
partner responsible for reviewing the audit has performed audit services for the district in each of the six previous
fiscal years shall not be selected to perform a district audit. (Education Code 41020)

No later than December 15, the report of the audit for the preceding fiscal year shall be filed with the County
Superintendent, CDE, and the State Controller. (Education Code 41020)

Prior to December 15 whenever possible, but in no case later than January 31, the Board shall review, at an open



meeting, the annual district audit for the prior year, any audit exceptions identified in that audit, the
recommendations or findings of any management letter issued by the auditor, and any description of correction or
plans to correct any exceptions or any issue raised in a management letter. (Education Code 41020.3)

The Board shall have an opportunity at the meeting to ask questions of the auditor and request further information
about the audit findings.

Audit Committee

The Board may appoint an audit committee composed of staff knowledgeable about fiscal matters, other staff, and
representatives of the community.

The committee shall serve in an advisory capacity and may:

1.

Make recommendations regarding the selection of the external independent auditor in accordance with
Education Code 41020 and 41020.5

. Review the plan for the audit process with the independent auditor to determine the adequacy of the nature,

scope, and timetable of the audit

. Review the results of the audit and participate with the independent auditor and management in preparing

final recommendations and responses

. Participate with the independent auditor in presenting the audit report to the Board

. Review Board policies and administrative regulations to recommend any revisions needed to ensure effective

financial reporting
Provide input on the effectiveness of the independent auditor

Periodically report to the Board regarding the status of previous audit recommendations for improving the
accounting and internal control systems




Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 3551: Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 08/09/2022

The Governing Board intends that school food services shall be a self-supporting, nonprofit program. To ensure
program quality and cost effectiveness, the Superintendent or designee shall centralize and direct the purchasing of
foods and supplies, the planning of menus, and the auditing of all food service accounts for the district.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that food service director(s) possess the qualifications required by 7
CFR 210.30 and California Department of Education (CDE) standards.

At least once each year, food service administrators, other appropriate personnel who conduct or oversee
administrative procedures, and other food service personnel shall receive training provided by CDE. (42 USC 1776)

Meal Sales

Any student who requests a meal shall be served a nutritionally adequate breakfast and lunch free of charge, each
school day. (Education Code 49501.5)

As permitted by law, additional or second meals, adult meals, and other nonprogram foods, such as smart snack
compliant food and beverages sold in vending machines, may be sold to students. (Education Code 38082, 49501.5)

Meals may be sold to district employees, Board members, and employees or members of the fund or association
maintaining the cafeteria. (Education Code 38082)

In addition, meals may be sold to nonstudents, including parents/guardians, volunteers, students' siblings, or other
individuals, who are authorized by the Superintendent or designee to be on campus. Any meals served to
nonstudents shall not be subsidized by federal or state reimbursements, food service revenues, or U.S. Department
of Agriculture (USDA) foods.

Meal prices, as recommended by the Superintendent or designee and approved by the Board, shall be based on the
costs of providing food services and consistent with Education Code 38084 and 42 USC 1760.

The Superintendent or designee shall establish strategies and procedures for the collection of meal payments. Such
procedures shall conform with 2 CFR 200.426 and any applicable CDE guidance. The Superintendent or designee
shall clearly communicate these procedures to students and parents/guardians, and shall make this policy and the
accompanying administrative regulation available to the public pursuant to Education Code 49557.5.

Cafeteria Fund and Account

The Superintendent or designee shall establish a cafeteria fund independent of the district's general fund.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that state and federal funds provided through school meal programs are
allocated only for purposes related to the operation or improvement of food services and for reasonable and
necessary indirect program costs as allowed by law.

The wages, salaries, and benefits of food service employees shall be paid from the cafeteria fund. (Education Code
38103)

Contracts with Outside Services



With Board approval, the district may enter into a contract for food service consulting services or management
services in one or more district schools. (Education Code 45103.5; 42 USC 1758; 7 CFR 210.16)

Procurement of Foods, Equipment and Supplies

To the maximum extent practicable, foods purchased for use in school meals by the district or by any entity
purchasing food on its behalf shall be domestic commodities or products. Domestic commodity or product means an
agricultural commodity that is produced in the United States and a food product that is processed in the United

States substantially using agricultural commodities that are produced in the United States. {42 USC 1760; 7 CFR
210.21)

When soliciting for bids and contracts for the purchase of an agricultural food product, the district shall specify in the
solicitation that only the purchase of agricultural food products grown, packed, or processed domestically is
authorized, unless a specific exception applies. A nondomestic food product may be purchased for use in the
district's food service program only as a last resort when the product is not produced or manufactured in the United
States in sufficient and reasonably available quantities of a satisfactory quality, the quality of the domestic product is
inferior to the quality of the nondomestic product, or the bid or price of the nondomestic product is more than 25
percent lower than the bid or price of the domestic product. In such cases, the Superintendent or designee shall
retain documentation justifying the use of the exception for three years from the date of purchase. (Food and
Agriculture Code 58596.3)

Furthermore, the district shall accept a bid or price for an agricultural food product grown in California before
accepting a bid or price for a domestic agricultural food product that is grown outside the state, if the quality of the
California-grown product is comparable and the bid or price does not exceed the lowest bid or price for domestic
product produced outside the state. (Food and Agriculture Code 58595)

Bid solicitations and awards for purchases of equipment, materials, or supplies in support of the district's child
nutrition program, or for contracts awarded pursuant to Public Contract Code 2000, shall be consistent with the
federal procurement standards in 2 CFR 200.318-200.326. Awards shall be let to the most responsive and
responsible party. Price shall be the primary consideration, but not the only determining factor, in making such an
award. (Public Contract Code 20111)

Program Monitoring and Evaluation

The Superintendent or designee shall present to the Board, at least annually, financial reports regarding revenues and
expenditures related to the food service program.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide all necessary documentation required for the Administrative Review
conducted by CDE to ensure compliance of the district's food service program with federal requirements.




Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Regulation 3551: Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 08/09/2022

Payments for Meals

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain a system for accurately recording payments received and tracking
meals provided to each student.

At the beginning of the school year, the Superintendent or designee shall communicate the district's meal payment
policies through multiple methods, including, but not limited to:

1. Explaining the meal charge policy within registration materials provided to parents/guardians at the start of the
school year

2. Including the policy in print versions of student handbooks, if provided to parents/guardians annually

3. Providing the policy whenever parents/guardians are notified regarding the application process for free and
reduced-price mealis, such as in the distribution of eligibility forms at the start of the school year

4. Posting the policy on the district's website

Reimbursement Claims

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records of the number of meals served each day by school site and by
category of free and reduced-price meals. The Superintendent or designee shail submit reimbursement claims for
school meals to the California Department of Education (CDE) using the online Child Nutrition Information and
Payment System,

Donation of Leftover Food

The District shall take steps to minimize food waste and reduce food insecurity in district schools. (Health and Safety
Code 114079)

The Superintendent or designee shall arrange to recover the maximum amount of edible food that would otherwise
be disposed for donation to a local food recovery organization. (14 CCR 18991.3)

The district may also provide sharing tables where students and staff may return appropriate unused cafeteria food
items to be made available to students during the course of a regular school meal time. If food on the sharing tables
is not taken by a student, the school cafeteria may donate the food to a food bank or any other nonprofit charitable
organization. {Health and Safety Code 114079)

Food that may be donated includes prepackaged, nonpotentially hazardous food with the packaging still intact and in
good condition, whole uncut produce that complies with Health and Safety Code 113992, unopened bags of sliced
fruit, unopened containers of milk that are immediately stored in a cooling bin maintained at 41 degrees Fahrenheit
or below, and perishable prepackaged food if it is placed in a proper temperature-controlled environment. The
preparation, safety, and donation of food shall be consistent with Health and Safety Code 113980. (Health and
Safety Code 114079)

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records related to edible food recovery including a list of each food
recovery service or organization that collects or receives the district's edible food, contact information for the service
or organization, the types of food, frequency, and quantity that will be collected or hauled by the district, and a copy

of contracts or written agreements between the district and food recovery services or organizations. (14 CCR
18991.4)

Cafeteria Fund and Account



All proceeds from food sales and other services offered by the cafeteria shall be deposited in the cafeteria fund as
provided by law. (Education Code 38090, 38093)

The cafeteria fund shall be used only for those expenditures authorized by the Governing Board as necessary for the
operation of school cafeterias in accordance with Education Code 38100-38103, 2 CFR Part 200 Appendix VI, and
the California School AccountingManual.

The district may use cafeteria funds to supplement the provision of a nutritionally adequate breakfast and/or lunch
to district students when permitted by law.

Any charges to, or transfers from, a food service program shall be dated and accompanied by a written explanation of
the purpose of and basis for the expenditure. (Education Code 38101)

Indirect costs charged to the food service program shall be based on either the district's prior year indirect cost rate
as approved by CDE or the statewide average approved indirect cost rate for the second prior fiscal year, whichever
is less. (Education Code 38101)

Net cash resources in the nonprofit school food service shall not exceed six months' average expenditures. (7 CFR
210.14, 220.7)

U.S. Department of Agriculture Foods

The district shall provide facilities for the storage and control of foods received through the U.S. Department of
Agriculture (USDA) that protect against theft, spoilage, damage, or other loss. Such storage facilities shall maintain
donated foods in sanitary conditions, at the proper temperature and humidity, and with adequate air circulation. The
district shall comply with all federal, state, or local requirements related to food safety and health and procedures for
responding to a food recall, as applicable, and shall obtain all required health inspections. (7 CFR 250.14)

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain inventories of USDA foods in accordance with 7 CFR 250.59 and CDE
procedures, and shall ensure that foods are used before their expiration dates.

USDA donated foods shall be used in school lunches as far as practicable. USDA foods also may be used in other
nonprofit food service activities, including, but not limited to, school breakfasts or other meals, a |a carte foods sold
to students, meals served to adults directly involved in the operation and administration of the food service and to
other school staff, and training in nutrition, health, food service, or general home economics instruction for students,

provided that any revenues from such activities accrue to the district's nonprofit food service account. (7 CFR
250.59)

Contracts with Outside Services

The term of any contract for food service management or consulting services shall not exceed one year. Any renewal
of the contract or further requests for proposals to provide such services shall be considered on a year-to-year basis.
(Education Code 45103.5; 7 CFR 210.16)

Any contract for management of the food service operation shall be approved by CDE and comply with the
conditions in Education Code 49554 and 7 CFR 210.16 as applicable. The district shall retain control of the quality,
extent, and general nature of its food services. (Education Code 49554; 42 USC 1758; 7 CFR 210.16)

Any contract for consulting services shall not result in the supervision of food service classified staff by the
management consultant, nor shall it result in the elimination of any food service classified staff or position or have
any adverse effect on the wages, benefits, or other terms and conditions of employment of classified food service
staff or positions. All persons providing consulting services shall be subject to applicable employment conditions
related to health and safety as listed in Education Code 45103.5. (Education Code 45103.5)



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 4151: Employee Compensation Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 06/09/2020

In order to recruit and retain employees committed to the district's goals for student learning, the Governing Board

recognizes the importance of offering a competitive compensation package which includes salaries and health and
welfare benefits.

The Board shall adopt separate salary schedules for certificated, classified, and supervisory and administrative
personnel. These schedules shall comply with law and collective bargaining agreements and shall be printed and
made available for review at the district office. (Education Code 45022, 45023, 45160, 45162, 45268)

Each certificated employee, except an employee in an administrative or supervisory position, shall be classified on
the salary schedule on the basis of uniform allowance for education level and years of experience, unless the Board
and employee organization negotiate and mutually agree to a salary schedule based on different criteria. Certificated
employees shall not be placed in different classifications on the schedule, nor paid different salaries, solely on the
basis of the grade levels at which they teach. {Education Code 45028)

Salary schedules for staff who are not a part of a bargaining unit shall be determined by the Board at the
recommendation of the Superintendent or designee.

The Board shall determine the frequency and schedule of salary payments, including whether payments for
employees who work less than 12 months per year will be made over the course of the school year or in equal
installments over the calendar year. However, if the district participates in the Classified School Employee Summer
Assistance Program, eligible classified employees may elect to have up to 10 percent of the employee's monthly
salary withheld and paid out during the summer recess in either one or two payments. (Education Code 45038,
45039, 45048, 45165, 45500)

In extraordinary circumstances or emergency situations, the Board may determine to continue to compensate
employees during periods of extended closure or disruption of normal district operations when permitted by law and
consistent with collective bargaining agreements and memoranda of understanding.

The Superintendent or designee shall post a notice explaining the Fair Labor Standards Act’s wage and hour
provisions in a conspicuous place at each work site. (29 CFR 516.4)

Overtime Compensation

District employees shall be paid an overtime rate of not less than one and one-half times their regular rate of pay for
any hours worked in excess of eight hours in one day and/or 40 hours in one work week, or twice their regular rate
of pay for any hours worked in excess of 12 hours in one day or eight hours on the seventh consecutive day of work.
However, teachers, school administrators, and other employees in positions established by the Board as executive,
administrative, or professional shall be exempt from overtime rules. (Education Code 45128, 45130; 29 USC 213;
29 CFR 541.0-541.710, 553.27, 553.32)

When authorized in a collective bargaining agreement or other agreement between the district and employees, an
employee may take compensatory time off in lieu of overtime compensation, provided the employee has not accrued
compensatory time in excess of the limits specified in 29 USC 207. An employee who has requested the use of
compensatory time shall be allowed to use such time within 12 calendar months after making the request if the use
of the compensatory time does not unduly disrupt district operations. (Education Code 45129: 29 USC 207; 29 CFR
553.20-553.25)

For each nonexempt employee, the Superintendent or designee shall maintain records on the employee's wages,
hours, and other information specified in 29 CFR 516.5-516.6.



Wage Overpayment

If the district determines an employee has been overpaid, the district shall notify the employee in writing of the
overpayment, afford the employee an opportunity to respond before commencing any recoupment actions, and
inform the employee of the employee's rights to dispute the existence or amount of the claimed overpayment. If the
employee agrees there was an overpayment in the claimed amount, reimbursement shall be made to the district
through one of the methods described in Education Code 44042.5 as mutually agreed upon by the employee and the
district. (Education Code 44042.5)

If a mutual agreement on a method of reimbursement is not reached, within 30 days of the employee verifying the
overpayment amount, the district shall recoup the overpayment through payroll deductions in accordance with
Education Code 440425,

If the employee does not respond or disputes the existence or amount of the district's claimed overpayment, the
district shall, with board approval, initiate a legal action to recover the overpayment. (Education Code 44042.5)

If the employee separates from the district before the overpayment is fully repaid, the district shall withhold the
remaining balance due from any money owed to the employee upon separation, provided that the state minimum
wage is still paid to the employee as required by Education Code 44042.5. The Superintendent or designee may
consult with legal counsel to calculate the amount to withhold.

If an outstanding overpayment balance still remains, the district shall, with Board approval, exercise any legal means
to recover the remaining amount owed by the employee. (Education Code 44042.5)

Legal action to recover any overpayment under this policy shall be initiated within three years from the date of the
overpayment, which for leave credits is the date that the employee receives compensation in exchange for leave
erroneously credited to the employee. (Education Code 44042.5)




Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 4251: Employee Compensation Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 06/0%9/2020

In order to recruit and retain employees committed to the district's goals for student learning, the Governing Board
recognizes the importance of offering a competitive compensation package which includes salaries and health and
welfare benefits.

The Board shall adopt separate salary schedules for certificated, classified, and supervisory and administrative
personnel. These schedules shall comply with law and collective bargaining agreements and shall be printed and
made available for review at the district office. (Education Code 45022, 45023, 45160, 45162, 45268)

Each certificated employee, except an employee in an administrative or supervisory position, shall be classified on
the salary schedule on the basis of uniform allowance for education level and years of experience, unless the Board
and employee organization negotiate and mutually agree to a salary schedule based on different criteria. Certificated
employees shall not be placed in different classifications on the schedule, nor paid different salaries, solely on the
basis of the grade levels at which they teach. (Education Code 45028}

Salary schedules for staff who are not a part of a bargaining unit shall be determined by the Board at the
recommendation of the Superintendent or designee.

The Board shall determine the frequency and schedule of salary payments, including whether payments for
employees who work less than 12 months per year will be made over the course of the school year or in equal
installments over the calendar year. However, if the district participates in the Classified School Employee Summer
Assistance Program, eligible classified employees may elect to have up to 10 percent of the employee's monthly
salary withheld and paid out during the summer recess in either one or two payments. (Education Code 45038,
45039, 45048, 45165, 45500)

In extraordinary circumstances or emergency situations, the Board may determine to continue to compensate
employees during periods of extended closure or disruption of normal district operations when permitted by law and
consistent with collective bargaining agreements and memoranda of understanding.

The Superintendent or designee shall post a notice explaining the Fair Labor Standards Act's wage and hour
provisions in a conspicuous place at each work site. {29 CFR 516.4)

Overtime Compensation

District employees shall be paid an overtime rate of not less than one and one-half times their regular rate of pay for
any hours worked in excess of eight hours in one day and/or 40 hours in one work week, or twice their regular rate
of pay for any hours worked in excess of 12 hours in one day or eight hours on the seventh consecutive day of work.
However, teachers, school administrators, and other employees in positions established by the Board as executive,
administrative, or professional shall be exempt from overtime rules. (Education Code 45128, 45130; 29 USC 213;
29 CFR 541.0-541.710, 553.27, 553.32)

When authorized in a collective bargaining agreement or other agreement between the district and employees, an
employee may take compensatory time off in lieu of overtime compensation, provided the employee has not accrued
compensatory time in excess of the limits specified in 29 USC 207. An employee who has requested the use of
compensatory time shall be allowed to use such time within 12 calendar months after making the request if the use
of the compensatory time does not unduly disrupt district operations. (Education Code 45129: 29 USC 207; 29 CFR
553.20-553.25)

For each nonexempt employee, the Superintendent or designee shall maintain records on the employee's wages,
hours, and other information specified in 29 CFR 516.5-516.6.



Wage Overpayment

If the district determines an employee has been overpaid, the district shall notify the employee in writing of the
overpayment, afford the employee an opportunity to respond before commencing any recoupment actions, and
inform the employee of the employee's rights to dispute the existence or amount of the claimed overpayment. If the
employee agrees there was an overpayment in the claimed amount, reimbursement shall be made to the district
through one of the methods described in Education Code 44042.5 as mutually agreed upon by the employee and the
district. (Education Code 44042.5)

If a mutual agreement on a method of reimbursement is not reached, within 30 days of the employee verifying the
overpayment amount, the district shall recoup the overpayment through payroll deductions in accordance with
Education Code 44042.5.

If the employee does not respond or disputes the existence or amount of the district's claimed overpayment, the
district shall, with board approval, initiate a legal action to recover the overpayment. (Education Code 44042.5)

If the employee separates from the district before the overpayment is fully repaid, the district shall withhold the
remaining balance due from any money owed to the employee upon separation, provided that the state minimum
wage is still paid to the employee as required by Education Code 44042.5. The Superintendent or designee may
consuit with legal counsel to calculate the amount to withhold.

If an outstanding overpayment balance still remains, the district shall, with Board approval, exercise any legal means
to recover the remaining amount owed by the employee. {Education Code 44042.5)

Legal action to recover any overpayment under this policy shall be initiated within three years from the date of the
overpayment, which for leave credits is the date that the employee receives compensation in exchange for leave
erroneously credited to the employee. (Education Code 44042.5)




Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 4351: Employee Compensation Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 06/09/2020

In order to recruit and retain employees committed to the district's goals for student learning, the Governing Board
recognizes the importance of offering a competitive compensation package which includes salaries and health and
welfare benefits.

The Board shall adopt separate salary schedules for certificated, classified, and supervisory and administrative
personnel. These schedules shall comply with law and collective bargaining agreements and shall be printed and
made available for review at the district office. (Education Code 45022, 45023, 45160, 45162, 45268)

Each certificated employee, except an employee in an administrative or supervisory position, shall be classified on
the salary schedule on the basis of uniform allowance for education level and years of experience, unless the Board
and employee organization negotiate and mutually agree to a salary schedule based on different criteria. Certificated
employees shall not be placed in different classifications on the schedule, nor paid different salaries, solely on the
basis of the grade levels at which they teach. (Education Code 45028)

Salary schedules for staff who are not a part of a bargaining unit shall be determined by the Board at the
recommendation of the Superintendent or designee.

The Board shall determine the frequency and schedule of salary payments, including whether payments for
employees who work less than 12 months per year will be made over the course of the school year or in equal
installments over the calendar year. However, if the district participates in the Classified School Employee Summer
Assistance Program, eligible classified employees may elect to have up to 10 percent of the employee's monthly
salary withheld and paid out during the summer recess in either one or two payments. (Education Code 45038,
45039, 45048, 45165, 45500)

In extraordinary circumstances or emergency situations, the Board may determine to continue to compensate
employees during periods of extended closure or disruption of normal district operations when permitted by law and
consistent with collective bargaining agreements and memoranda of understanding.

The Superintendent or designee shall post a notice explaining the Fair Labor Standards Act's wage and hour
provisions in a conspicuous place at each work site. (29 CFR 516.4)

Overtime Compensation

District employees shall be paid an overtime rate of not less than one and one-half times their regular rate of pay for
any hours worked in excess of eight hours in one day and/or 40 hours in one work week, or twice their regular rate
of pay for any hours worked in excess of 12 hours in one day or eight hours on the seventh consecutive day of work.
However, teachers, school administrators, and other employees in positions established by the Board as executive,
administrative, or professional shall be exempt from overtime rules. {Education Code 45128, 45130; 29 USC 213;
29 CFR 541.0-541.710, 553.27, 553.32)

When authorized in a collective bargaining agreement or other agreement between the district and employees, an
employee may take compensatory time off in lieu of overtime compensation, provided the employee has not accrued
compensatory time in excess of the limits specified in 29 USC 207. An employee who has requested the use of
compensatory time shall be allowed to use such time within 12 calendar months after making the request if the use
of the compensatory time does not unduly disrupt district operations. (Education Code 45129; 29 USC 207; 29 CFR
553.20-553.25)

For each nonexempt employee, the Superintendent or designee shall maintain records on the employee's wages,
hours, and other information specified in 29 CFR 516.5-516.6.



Wage Overpayment

If the district determines an employee has been overpaid, the district shall notify the employee in writing of the
overpayment, afford the employee an opportunity to respond before commencing any recoupment actions, and
inform the employee of the employee's rights to dispute the existence or amount of the claimed overpayment. If the
employee agrees there was an overpayment in the claimed amount, reimbursement shall be made to the district
through one of the methods described in Education Code 44042.5 as mutually agreed upon by the employee and the
district. (Education Code 44042.5)

If a mutual agreement on a method of reimbursement is not reached, within 30 days of the employee verifying the
overpayment amount, the district shall recoup the overpayment through payroll deductions in accordance with
Education Code 44042.5.

If the employee does not respond or disputes the existence or amount of the district's claimed overpayment, the
district shall, with board approval, initiate a legal action to recover the overpayment. (Education Code 44042.5)

If the employee separates from the district before the overpayment is fully repaid, the district shall withhold the
remaining balance due from any money owed to the employee upon separation, provided that the state minimum
wage is still paid to the employee as required by Education Code 44042.5. The Superintendent or designee may
consult with legal counsel to calculate the amount to withhold.

If an outstanding overpayment balance still remains, the district shall, with Board approval, exercise any legal means
to recover the remaining amount owed by the employee. (Education Code 44042.5)

Legal action to recover any overpayment under this policy shall be initiated within three years from the date of the
overpayment, which for leave credits is the date that the employee receives compensation in exchange for leave
erroneously credited to the employee. (Education Code 44042.5)




Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Regulation 4217.3: Layoff/Rehire Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 01/11/2022

Classified employees shall be subject to layoff for lack of work or lack of funds. (Education Code 45114, 45308)

A classified employee shall not be laid off if a short-term employee is retained to render a service that the classified
employee is qualified to render. (Education Code 45117)

Order of Layoff Within a Classification/Determination of Seniority

Within each class, the order of layoff shall be determined by length of service. (Education Code 45114, 45308)

Length of service means all hours in paid status, whether during the school year, a holiday, recess, or during any period
that school is in session or closed. However, length of service shall not include hours compensated solely on an
overtime basis, as provided for Education Code 45128, and shall not include hours for any service performed prior to
entering into probationary or permanent status except for service in a restricted position pursuant to Education
Code 45105. (Education Code 45308)

The employee who has been employed the shortest time in the class, plus higher classes, shall be laid off first.
(Education Code 45308)

For an employee who is a member of the Military Reserve or the National Guard, length of service credit shall be
granted for military leave of absence, including voluntary or involuntary active duty during a period of national
emergency or war. (Education Code 45297, 45308)

Length of service credit may be granted for time spent on unpaid illness or maternity leave, unpaid family care leave,
or unpaid industrial accident leave. Length of service credit shall not be granted for other types of unpaid leaves.
(Education Code 45308)

For an employee in a "restricted position” under Education Code 45105 or 45259, the original date of employment
in the restricted position shall be used to determine the length of service, provided the employee has completed six
months of satisfactory service and has successfully passed the qualifying examination required for service in the
class. (Education Code 45105)

Notice of Layoff and Hearing Rights

Whenever a permanent classified employee is to be laid off for lack of work or lack of funds, the Superintendent or
designee shall, no later than March 15 and before the employee is given formal notice by the Governing Board, give
to the employee written notice of the recommendation, the reasons that the employee's services will not be required
for the ensuing year, any displacement rights, reemployment rights, and the employee's right to a hearing. The
district shall adhere to the notice, hearing, and layoff procedures in Education Code 45117, Government Code
11503 and 11505, and other applicable provisions of law. (Education Code 45117)

An employee who is so notified may request a hearing to determine if there is cause for not reemploying the
employee for the ensuing year. The request shall be in writing and shall be delivered to the person who sent notice
to the employee, on or before March 15 but not less than seven days after the date the notice is served on the
employee. Failure of an employee to request a hearing on or before the date specified shall constitute a waiver of
the employee's right to a hearing. (Education Code 45117)

The Superintendent or designee shall serve an employee who timely requests a hearing with District Statement of
Reduction in Force documents. The employee has five calendar days from service of the documents to timely file a
notice of participation with the district. The parties are entitled to discovery, if requested within 15 days of service.
(Education Code 45117)

If a hearing is requested by a permanent classified employee, the proceeding shall be conducted and a decision made
by an administrative law judge in accordance with Government Code 11500-11529. At the hearing, the employee



may be represented by an attorney or by a nonattorney representative of the employee organization designated as
the exclusive representative for classified employees. The Board shall make a final decision regarding the sufficiency
of the cause and disposition of the layoff upon receipt of the administrative law judge's proposed decision. None of
the findings, recommendations, or determinations in the proposed decision prepared by the administrative law judge
shall be binding on the Board. (Education Code 45117)

Following the Board's decision, the Superintendent or designee shall give final notice of termination to the affected
employee(s) before May 15 unless a continuance was granted after a request for hearing was made, in which case
such date may be extended by the number of days of the continuance. (Education Code 45117)

If during the time between five days after the enactment of an annual Budget Act and August 15 of the fiscal year to
which the Budget Act applies, the Board determines that the district's local control funding formula apportionment
per unit of ADA for that fiscal year has not increased by at least two percent, and that it is therefore necessary to
decrease the number of classified employees due to lack of work or lack of funds, the Board may issue a District
Statement of Reduction in Force to those employees in accordance with a schedule of notice and hearing adopted by
the Board, and layoff proceedings shall be carried out as required by law. (Education Code 45117)

When classified positions are eliminated as a result of the expiration of a specifically funded program, the district
shall give written notice to the affected employee(s) not less than 60 days prior to the effective date of the layoff
informing the employee(s) of the layoff date, any displacement rights, and employment rights. (Education Code
45117)

The district is not required to provide a layoff notice to any person hired as a short-term employee for a period not
exceeding 60 days whose service may not be extended or renewed. (Education Code 45117)

Additionally, the district may release probationary classified employees without notice or hearing for reasons other
than lack of work or lack of funds. (Education Code 45117)

Reemployment

Classified employees laid off because of lack of work or lack of funds shall be eligible for reemployment for a period
of 39 months and shall be reemployed in preference to new applicants. Reemployment shall be in order of seniority.
Persons so laid off also have the right to apply and establish their qualification for vacant promotional positions
within the district during the 39-month period. {Education Code 45114, 45298, 45308)

When a vacancy occurs, the district shall give the employee with the most seniority an opportunity to accept or
reject the position, by first calling the employee at the employee's last known telephone number to notify the
employee of the vacancy and then sending written notice by certified and standard mail to the employee's last
known address. The employee shall advise the district of the decision by any means no later than 10 calendar days
from the date the notice was sent. If the employee accepts, the employee shall report to work no later than two
calendar weeks from the vacancy notification date or on a later date specified by the district.

In order to be reemployed, the employee must be capable of performing the essential duties of the job with or
without reasonable accommodations. When an otherwise eligible employee is unable to perform the essential duties
of the job, the employee shall be kept on the reemployment list until another opportunity becomes available or the
period of reemployment eligibility expires, whichever occurs first.

Upon rejecting two offers of reemployment, the employee's name shall be removed from the reemployment list and
the employee will forfeit all reemployment rights to which the employee would otherwise be entitled.

When an employee is notified of a vacancy and fails to respond or report to work within time limits specified by
district procedures, the employee's name shall be removed from the reemployment list and all reemployment rights
to which the employee would otherwise be entitled shall be forfeited.

If an employee is reemployed in a new position and fails to complete the probationary period in the new position,
the employee shall be returned to the reemployment list for the remainder of the 39-month period. The remaining



time period shall be calculated as the time remaining in the 39-month period as of the date of reemployment.
(Education Code 45114, 45298)

Reinstatement of Benefits

When a laid-off employee is reemployed, all accumulated sick leave credit shall be restored.
A laid-off permanent employee shall be reemployed with all rights and benefits accorded at the time of layoff.

A laid-off probationary employee shall be reemployed as a probationary employee, and the previous time served
toward the completion of the required probationary period shall be counted. The employee shall also be reemployed
with all rights and benefits accorded to a probationary employee at the time of layoff.

A laid-off employee, when reemployed, shall be placed on the salary step held at the time of layoff. An employee
who was bumped into a lower class shall, when reinstated to the previous class, be placed on the salary step to
which the employee would have progressed had the employee remained there. An adjusted anniversary date shall be
established for step increment purposes so as to reflect the actual amount of time served in the district.

Voluntary Demotion or Reduction of Hours

Classified employees who take voluntary demotion or voluntary reduction in assigned time in lieu of layoff, or in
order to remain in their present position rather than be reclassified or reassigned, shall be granted the same rights as
employees who are laid off. In addition, such employees shall retain eligibility to be considered for reemployment in
their previously held class or position with increased assigned time, for an additional period of time up to 24 months
as determined by the Board on a class-by-class basis, provided that the same test of fitness under which they
qualified for appointment to that class shall still apply. (Education Code 45114, 45298)

Employees who take voluntary demotion or voluntary reduction in assigned time in lieu of layoff shall have the
option of returning to a position in their former class or to positions with increased assigned time as vacancies
become available and without limitation of time. If there is a valid reemployment list, they shall be ranked on that list
in accordance with their proper seniority. (Education Code 45114, 45298)




Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 5131.9: Academic Honesty Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017

The Governing Board believes that academic honesty and personal integrity are fundamental components of a
student's education and character development. The Board expects that students will not cheat, lie, plagiarize, or
commit other acts of academic dishonesty.

Students, parents/guardians, staff, and administrators shall be responsible for creating and maintaining a positive
school climate that encourages honesty. Students found to have committed an act of academic dishonesty shall be
subject to district and school-site discipline rules.

The Superintendent or designee may establish a committee comprised of students, parents/guardians, staff,
administrators, and members of the public to develop standards of academic honesty, measures of preventing
dishonesty, and specific consequences for acts of dishonesty. Any recommendations for discipline shall be
incorporated into the school's site level discipline rules.

Prohibited and Permitted Technology Use

As the district's standards for academic achievement are designed to challenge all students to reach their full
potential in acquiring the knowledge and skills needed for success in postsecondary education, employment, and
responsible citizenship, any use of technology that prevents or inhibits a student from achieving these standards is
prohibited. Prohibited uses include, but are not limited to, using technology primarily or solely for the completion of
coursework as a student's original work and generating answers to mathematical, scientific, or analytical problems.

Permitted uses of technology include, but are not limited to, conducting research, correcting grammar and spelling,
and learning from educational applications such as tutoring systems and language learning applications.

Additionally, consistent with the limitations expressed in this policy and with teacher consent, students may also use
technology to assist with assessments, homework, and/or makeup work or other uses approved by the teacher.
However, a student with a disability shall be permitted to use technology for any purpose identified in the student's

individualized education program as a tool to support the student's learning.

If an employee suspects that a student has used technology in violation of this policy, the student shall be given the
opportunity to demonstrate that the use of technology was in accordance with this policy.

Any information acquired from an employee's use of technology in determining whether a student has committed an
act of academic dishonesty shall be shared with the student, and the student's parent/guardian as appropriate.

The Superintendent or designee may provide training to staff regarding the use of technology to improve education,
including the detection of plagiarism and sensitivity to potential discrimination from algorithmic bias.




Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 6154: Homework/Makeup Work Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 01/14/2020

The Governing Board recognizes that meaningful homework assignments can be a valuable extension of student
learning time, provide enrichment, and assist students in developing good study habits. Homework and/or makeup
work shall be assigned when necessary to support classroom lessons, enable students to complete unfinished
assignments, or review and apply academic content for better understanding.

Students may use technology to assist with homework and/or makeup work in conducting research, correcting
grammar and spelling, and learning from educational applications such as tutoring systems and language learning
applications, as specified in Board Policy 5131.9 - Academic Honesty and Board Policy 6163.4 - Student Use of
Technology.

The Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with school administrators and teachers to develop and regularly
review guidelines for the assignment of homework and the related responsibilities of students, staff, and
parents/guardians.

Homework assignments shall be reasonable in length and appropriate to the grade level and course. The Board
expects that the number, frequency, and degree of difficulty of homework assignments will increase with the grade
level and the maturity of students, Teachers shall assign homework only as necessary to fulfill academic goals and
reinforce current instruction.

As needed, teachers may receive training in designing relevant homework assignments that reinforce classroom
learning objectives and inspire students' interests.

Although on-time completion of homework is important to maintain academic progress, the Board recognizes that
students learn at different rates. Students shall receive credit for work that is completed late in order to encourage
their continued learning.

Age-appropriate instruction may be given to help students allocate their time wisely, meet their deadlines, learn to
work independently, and develop good personal study habits.

At the beginning of the school year, teachers shall communicate homework expectations to students and their
parents/guardians. Homework guidelines shall also be included in student and/or parent/guardian handbooks. These
communications shall include the manner in which homework relates to achievement of academic standards and
course content, the impact of homework assignments on students' grades, any school resources and programs that
are available to provide homework support, and ways in which parents/guardians may appropriately assist their
children,

Although it is the student's responsibility to undertake assignments independently, parents/guardians may serve as a
resource and are encouraged to ensure that their child's homework assignments are completed. Students may also
work with other students and use approved outside resources as directed by the teacher.

To further support students' homework efforts, the Superintendent or designee may establish and maintain
electronic forums, provide access to school library media centers and technological resources, and/or provide
before-school and after-school programs where students can receive homework assistance from teachers,
volunteers, and/or student tutors. The Board encourages the Superintendent or designee to design class and
transportation schedules that will enable students to make use of homework support services.

Teachers shall review all completed homework to assess the student's understanding of academic content and shall
provide timely feedback to the student.

If a student repeatedly fails to complete homework, the teacher shall notify the student's parents/guardians as soon
as possible so that corrective action can be taken prior to the release of any final grades or report cards.



Makeup Work

Students who are absent from school shall be given the opportunity to complete all assignments and tests that can
be reasonably provided. As determined by the teacher, the assignments and tests shall be equivalent to, but not
necessarily identical to, the assignments and tests missed during the absence. Students shall receive full credit for
work satisfactorily completed within a reasonable period of time.

The Superintendent or designee shall notify parents/guardians that no student may have a grade reduced or lose
academic credit for any excused absence when missed assignments and tests are satisfactorily completed within a
reasonable period of time. Such notification shall include the full text of Education Code 48205. (Education Code
48980)

Suspended Students

When a parent/guardian of a student who has been suspended for two or more school days requests homework that
the student would otherwise have been assigned, the student's teacher shall provide such homework. If a homework
assignment is requested and is turned in to the teacher by the student either upon the student's return from
suspension or within the timeframe originally prescribed by the teacher, whichever is later, and is not graded before
the end of the academic term, the homework assignment shall not be included in the calculation of the student's
overall grade in the class. (Education Code 48913.5)

The teacher of any class from which a student is suspended may require the student to complete any assignments
and tests missed during the suspension. (Education Code 48913)




Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 6162.5: Student Assessment Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017

The Governing Board recognizes that student assessments are an important instructional and accountability tool. To
obtain the most accurate evaluation of student performance, the district shall use a variety of measures, including
district, state, and/or national assessments.

Any student use of technology to complete assessments shall be as specified in Board Policy 5131.9 - Academic
Honesty and Board Policy 6163.4 - Student Use of Technology.

Assessment data shall be used to help determine individual students’ progress, mastery of academic standards,
appropriate placement in district programs, and/or eligibility for graduation. In addition, summary data on student
assessment results shall be used by the district to identify and review student achievement goals in the district's local
control and accountability plan, evaluate district educational programs in order to identify needed improvements,
and, as appropriate, evaluate staff performance.

In selecting or developing any district assessment, the Superintendent or designee shall examine evidence of its
reliability, its validity for the intended purpose and for various student populations, and the extent to which it aligns
with the material that is being taught.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that assessments are administered in accordance with law and test
publisher's directions, and that test administration procedures are fair and equitable for all students.

As appropriate, assessment results shall be disaggregated by student subgroup, classroom, grade level, and/or school
site to allow for critical analysis of student needs.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide professional development as needed to assist administrators and
teachers in interpreting and using assessment data to improve student performance and the instructional program.

When districtwide and school-level results of student assessments are published by the state, the Superintendent or
designee may provide supplementary information to assist parents/guardians and the community in understanding
test results.

Interim and Formative Assessments

State interim and formative assessments may be used in combination with other sources of information to gain
timely feedback about student progress in an effort to continually adjust instruction to improve learning, and for
communicating with students' parents/guardians and identifying professional development goals. Results from
interim and formative assessments shall not be used for any high-stakes purpose, including, but not limited to,
teacher or other school staff evaluation, accountability, student grade promotion or retention, graduation, course or
class placement, identification for gifted or talented education, reclassification of English learners, or identification as
an individual with exceptional needs. (Education Code 60642.6, 60642.7)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that teachers who administer interim and formative assessments have
access to all functions and information designed for teacher use related to such assessments and student
performance on the assessments, (Education Code 60642.6)

Individual Record of Accomplishment

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that each student, by the end of grade 12, has an individual record of
accomplishment that includes the following: (Education Code 60607)

1. The results of the state achievement tests required and administered as part of the California Assessment of
Student Performance and Progress, or any predecessor assessments, pursuant to Education Code 60640-



60649
2. The results of any end-of-course examinations taken

3. The results of any vocational education certification examinations taken

No individual record of accomplishment shall be released to any person, other than the student's parent/guardian or
a teacher, counselor, or administrator directly involved with the student, without the written consent of the student's
parent/guardian, or the student if the student is an adult or emancipated minor. The student or the student's
parent/guardian may authorize the release of the record of accomplishment to a postsecondary educational
institution for the purposes of credit, placement, or admission. Furthermore, the results of an individual student on
the CAASPP may be released to a postsecondary educational institution for the purpose of credit, placement, or
admission. (Education Code 60607)




Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Regulation 7140: Architectural And Engineering Services Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 12/10/2019

Contractors for any private architectural, landscape architectural, engineering, environmental, land surveying or
construction project management services shall be selected, at fair and reasonable prices, on the basis of
demonstrated competence and professional qualifications necessary for the satisfactory performance of the services
required. (Government Code 4526)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the selection process for projects receiving state funding:
(Government Code 4526)

1. Assures maximum participation by small business firms as defined pursuant to Government Code 14837

2. Prohibits practices which might result in unlawful activity such as rebates, kickbacks, or other unlawful
consideration

3. Prohibits district employees from participating in the selection process when they have a relationship with a
person or business entity seeking a contract which would subject the employee to the prohibition of
Government Code 87100

The selection process may also include: (Government Code 4527)

1. Evaluation of current statements of qualifications and performance data on file with the district and evaluation
of statements that may be submitted by other firms regarding the proposed project

2. Discussion with at least three firms regarding anticipated concepts and the relative utility of alternative
approaches for furnishing the required services

3. Selection, in order of preference, of at least three firms deemed to be the most highly qualified to provide the
required services in accordance with established district criteria

The district shall negotiate a contract with the best qualified firm at compensation determined by the district to be
fair and reasonable. If the district is unable to negotiate a contract with the most qualified firm, the district shall
negotiate a contract with the second most qualified firm and, if unsuccessful, with the third most qualified firm. If the
district is unable to negotiate a satisfactory contract with any of the selected firms, the district shall select additional

firms in order of their competence and qualification and continue negotiations until an agreement is reached.
(Government Code 4528)

The above procedures shall not apply if the Superintendent or designee determines that the services needed are
more of a technical nature and involve little professional judgment and that requiring bids would be in the public
interest. (Government Code 4529)

Contracts shail specify that all plans, including, but not limited to, record drawings, specifications, and estimates
prepared by the architect or structural engineer shall become the property of the district for the purpose of repair,
maintenance, renovation, modernization, or other purposes, but only as they relate to the project for which the
architect or structural engineer was retained. The contract shall also specify terms and conditions for reuse within
the district of any plans prepared by the architect or structural engineer. (Education Code 17316)

A design-build contract may be awarded to a single entity for both design and construction of any school facility if
the contract is in excess of $1,000,000, or an alternative design-build contract may be awarded if the contract is in
excess of $5,000,000, as specified in Administrative Regulation 3311.3 - Design-Build Contracts. (Education Code
17250.20, 17250.62)



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Bylaw 9124: Attorney Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017

The Governing Board recognizes the complex legal environment in which districts operate, the need to provide legal
representation for the district, and the importance of reliable, cost-effective, high-quality legal advice and services.

In order to meet the district's legal needs, the Board may appoint legal counsel and fix and order paid legal counsel's
compensation as an employee or as an independent contractor. (Education Code 35041.5)

The Board may enter into independent contractor services agreements with county counsel, law firms, attorneys in

private practice, and other public or private legal services entities. (Education Code 35204, 35205; Government
Code 26520, 26529)

The Board also supports pursuing collaborative legal efforts with other districts as well as other government agencies
as appropriate.

Duties of Legal Counsel
The district's legal counsel may: (Education Code 35041.5)
1. Render legal advice to the Board and the Superintendent or designee

2. Serve the Board and the Superintendent or designee in the preparation and conduct of district litigation and
administrative proceedings

3. Render advice on school bond and tax increase measures and prepare the necessary forms for the voting of
these measures

4. Perform other administrative duties as assigned by the Board and Superintendent or designee

Retaining Legal Counsel

When the district is seeking legal advice or representation, the Superintendent or designee shall identify prospective
attorney(s), firm(s), and/or legal services entity(ies).

The district may, but is not required to, initiate a Request for Proposals to advertise and solicit proposals for legal
services. In evaluating the prospective attorney(s), firm(s), and/or entity(ies), the Board and Superintendent may
consider the attorney's, firm's, and/or entity's background, experience, and relevant legal reputation; experience
advising and representing school districts in California; fees; and experience of attorneys at the firm who will provide
legal services.

Any attorney representing the district shall be admitted to practice law in California. (Education Code 35041.5)
The Board and Superintendent shall periodically evaluate the performance of the firm(s) and/or attorney(s); the
efficiency and adequacy of advice; the resuits obtained for the district; the reasonableness of fees; and the
responsiveness to and interactions with the Board, administration, and community.

The Board may use such evaluation(s) to determine whether to renew any current agreement(s) for legal services.

The Board may also contract for specialized legal services, as appropriate, when a majority of the Board determines
that the unique demands of a particular issue or emergency situation require such representation.

Contacting Legal Counsel
The Board president, or Superintendent or designee, may, at their discretion, confer with district legal counsel

subject to any limits or parameters established by the Board. In addition, the Board president, or Superintendent or
designee, may contact district legal counsel to provide the Board with legal information or advice when so directed



by a majority of the Board.

Individual Board members other than the Board president may not seek advice from district legal counsel on matters
of district business unless so authorized by the Superintendent, the Board president, or a majority of the Board.




